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Financial and Operating Highlights

MBREERE

Result E

Revenue A

Profit attributable to RAREB A
owners of the Company i3yl

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Interim and proposed final dividends

per share (HK cents)
Financial Position

Net current assets

Total interest-bearing bank loans

AR GEW)
R RS BCRE
P B.GEAL)

BRI

mEBEERME
FHERITERER

Key Financial Ratios FEEHLEE
Gross profit margin B
Net profit margin eI B
Return on equity A% 7K [2] 3 =R
Current ratio BN &
Gearing ratio” BEBBLLERO
Operating Statistics EEYE
Throughput (metric tonnes) & & (ANE)
Nanjing terminal R 5E
Ningbo terminal HFIEEE
Tianjin terminal KEETE
Jetty utilisation rate® ==
Nanjing terminal [EapiEpE]
Ningbo terminal = A
Tianjin terminal ROEHGER

Notes:

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000 % Change
FET FAT FE %
270,020 257,770 4.8
104,234 99,100 5.2
9.39 8.93 5.2

5.8 5.5 5.5
295,991 237,341 24.7
149,035 12,031 1,138.8
60.0% 59.5% 0.5
43.8% 44.2% 0.4)
11.1% 11.0% 0.1

4.9 4.1
12.1% 1.2% 10.9
1,722,100 1,717,700 0.3
253,500 329,300 (23.0)
170,000 67,100 1538.4
48.8% 50.5% (1.7)
30.0% 33.0% (8.0
56.7% 22.4% 34.3
P& -

(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the sum of non-
current and current bank loans divided by total assets multiplied
by 100%.

(2)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual actual
throughput via jetties divided by (i) the total annual designed
throughput capacity of jetties for Nanjing terminal and Ningbo
terminal in relation to the operating period; and (ii) the total annual
adjusted designed throughput capacity of the jetty for the Tianjin
terminal in relation to the operating period.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) for the year ended 31 December
2013.

OVERCOMES CHALLENGES THROUGH
OUTSTANDING RESULTS

During the year, the global economy continued to experience a
modest recovery. A slight improvement in consumer confidence and
employment figures were recorded in the US, and was followed by
a corresponding though marginal pickup in the eurozone. Economic
growth in China has slightly slowed down, although there is still quite
an encouraging GDP growth. China’s chemical industry continued
to exhibit growth. We were able to leverage our leading position as
a liquid chemical storage and integrated terminal service provider to
sustain our long-term strategic business relationships with world-
class chemical enterprises, such as Celanese Corporation. This
meant a guaranteed minimum income for our business; sufficient in
itself for achieving promising financial results.

Dragon Crown recorded satisfactory results, with revenue rising by
4.8% to HK$270.0 million (2012: HK$257.8 million) and net profit
up 3.8% to HK$118.3 million (2012: HK$113.9 million) in 2013. The
sterling results highlight our ability to perform resiliently and meet the
growing demand for our services. A visionary management team can
also be credited with the Group’s continuous success; employing
unique approaches to enhance our existing business model and
ensuring sustainable and foreseeable earnings. Given that the liquid
chemicals handled by the Group are applicable to the production of
various daily consumer products on the market; demand will grow
from players in the plastics, paints, textiles and solvents industries.

It is worth noting as well that Phase Ill of our facility at the Nanjing
terminal has commenced operation and is expected to have a full
impact on the Group’s revenue in 2014. The construction of our
second cryogenic ethylene tank has begun, thus far achieving good
progress. We believe that expanding storage capacity will enable us
to grasp further opportunities available within China’s liquid chemical
industry.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRE

During the year, we paid close attention to our cash flow and
maintained a healthy financial position characterized by sound
liquidity. As a result, we have sufficient capital to support the
sustained growth of the Group.

DIVIDENDS

In recognition of the support of our shareholders, an interim dividend
of HK2.0 cents (2012: nil) per share was declared and paid during the
year. In addition, the Board has proposed a final dividend of HK3.8
cents (2012: HK5.5 cents) per ordinary share. The total dividends per
share in 2013 increased to HK5.8 cents, which represent 61.8% of the
profit attributable to shareholders for the year. This is consistent with
the Group’s dividend payout policy.

SAFETY

Employee safety has been our top priority for many years. We
provide regular training to all of our staff members, as well as develop
and implement HSE (Health, Safety and Environment) policies in
accordance with national and industry standards. Due to our careful
attention to safety, we did not experience any material incidents in
2013. We intend to seek further improvements in this area, with the
ultimate goal of providing safe and quality services to our customers.

PROMISING OUTLOOK TO SUPPORT THE RAPIDLY
EXPANDING MARKET

Despite the challenging economic environment, we remain positive
and confident about the prospects for the liquid chemical industry.
With support from an expanding consumer market for basic
chemical materials and chemical products in China, we believe that
demand for our services will continue to grow.

Furthermore, with our world-class expertise and excellent facilities
and services, we have built a strong reputation and earned the trust
of our customers, which include renowned large-scale multinational
chemical enterprises. Capitalizing on the global trend for outsourcing
logistics arrangements, we see the opportunity to introduce new
cost-effective solutions that enable our customers to reduce costs,
increase business flexibility and enhance logistic efficiency.
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The commencement of Phrase Ill terminal operations in Nanjing
is another positive development, leading to additional profit
contributions to the Group as expected. We have secured long-term
terminal service contracts for over 63% storage capacity of our new
tanks with customers and believe that the new tanks will continue
reinforcing the Group’s influence in Nanjing. Construction of the
second cryogenic ethylene tank, which will commence operation
in third quarter of 2014, will help Dragon Crown to further capture
rapid demand for liquid chemical terminal services from current and
potential customers in China.

CONCLUSION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our colleagues
for their efforts and confidence in the Group. | would also like
to express my sincere gratitude to all of our business partners,
customers and shareholders for their support. Moving forward, the
Group will continue to seek sustainable and maximum value for its
shareholders. | look forward to pursuing this path of development
and growth with all stakeholders, along with receiving their ongoing
assistance.

Ng Wai Man

Chairman

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
19 March 2014
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG, Wai Man, aged 57, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company. Mr. NG is the founder of our Group
and is principally responsible for operation of our Board and is the
key decision-maker of our Group. He is responsible for formulating
the overall business strategic development for our Group. Mr. NG
has accumulated around 25 years of management and operation
experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products
industry. Mr. NG is the founder of Dragon Source Industrial Limited
and its invested entity, Ningbo Haixiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (the predecessor of Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and has managed its operation since 1988.
Mr. NG was the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon
Crown Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd from April 2004 to 2007
responsible for overseeing strategic development and management
of resources. From December 1993 to September 2004, Mr. NG
was a director of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co., Ltd, a company
which provides inspection, certification and testing services. He
served as the chairman and general manager from October 1997
to October 2006 and legal representative from October 1997 to
October 2007 for Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon Crown Chemical
International Trade Company Ltd., a trading company, responsible
for strategic business management. Mr. NG was appointed as our
Director on 16 July 2010 and was re-designated as our executive
Director on 30 November 2010.

Mr. TING Yian Ann, aged 53, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. TING is principally responsible
for overall management and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with our key customers. Mr. TING
joined our Group in 2003. Since 2007, Mr. TING has served as
the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon Crown
Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. He has accumulated around
25 years of management and operation experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. TING was a regional budget coordinator of Astra
Asia Regional Office, a pharmaceutical company, in Singapore
from 1986 to 1988, his major duties included coordinating and
preparing budget for all regional offices within Asia and reporting
to managing director. He served as an account executive from
1988 to 1990, a senior account manager, sales and marketing
department from 1990 to 1992, an assistant vice president, sales
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Directors and Senior Management

and marketing department from 1992 to 1993, a vice president,
regional development and marketing department from 1993 to 1995,
a senior vice president, regional development and marketing from
1995 to 1997, and president and chief executive officer from 1997
to 2001 of GATX (Jurong) Terminals Pte Ltd., a company providing
global networks in bulk liquid storage, packaging, distribution and
logistic services in Singapore. His major duties at GATX (Jurong)
Terminals Pte Ltd. covered overall planning and operation of the
company in the region, formulating strategies, cultivating relationship
with customers and authorities and developing internal controls
system. Mr. TING was the deputy chairman of the Singapore
Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001 and also served as
the chairman of the Logistics & Distribution Committee established
under the Singapore Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001.
Mr. TING graduated from University of Southern California in 1985
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration. Mr.
TING was appointed as an executive Director on 30 November
2010.

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, aged 52, is an executive Director. Mr.
CHONG joined our Group in 1994. Mr. CHONG is principally
responsible for business and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with major customers. He has
accumulated around 19 years of experience in the liquid chemical
products terminal and storage industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited, an
international conglomerate engaging in various businesses, including
worldwide logistics and financing, development of infrastructure, for
over seven years. He was in the chemicals division and undertook
business support centered around petrochemical products chain
for logistics and distribution. He was also responsible for developing
strategic partnerships and customer relations. Mr. CHONG
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with
a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr. CHONG was
appointed as an executive Director on 30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAR

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, aged 48, is an executive Director. Ms.
CHAN is responsible for our Group’s day-to-day management,
administration as well as human resources management. She joined
our Group in 1988. Ms. CHAN has accumulated around 25 years of
management and operation experience in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
CHAN worked for Wai Hing Company, a trading company, from
November 1986 to July 1988 responsible for arrangements in trading
of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Shijie, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LUQO is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. He was deputy factory director of SINOPEC
Sichuan Vinylon Works from 1988 to 1996. Mr. LUO was deputy
general manager of SINOPEC Sales Company from 1996 to 1999,
deputy director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2000 to
2008, and director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2003
to 2006. From 2005 to 2006, he also was general manager of
SINOPEC Chemical Products Sales Company. Mr. LUO graduated
from Tianjin University in 1968, majored in Precision Instrument.
He obtained the qualification as an engineer from Chongqging City
Government in 1981. He was appointed as senior engineer by
SINOPEC in 1987.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. ZHU Wujun, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010, Mr. ZHU is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. ZHU was the deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company from 1985 to 1998. From
1998 to 2005, Mr. ZHU was a director and deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Ltd. From 2005 to 2006,
Mr.ZHU was the deputy manager of Sinopec Chemical Products
Sales Company. Mr. ZHU was also the chairman of Yangyang
Chemical logistics and Trading Company from 1995 to 2005. Mr.
ZHU graduated from Zhejiang University in 1965 with a bachelor
degree in chemical engineering. He has obtained the qualification
as a senior economist from the assessment committee of China
Petrochemical Company which assessed his qualification according
to standards set by the State Council in 1995.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LAU is also chairman
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served as the financial controller of
a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board over 3 years and had worked with PricewaterhouseCoppers
for over 5 years. Mr. LAU graduated from Oregon State University
with a bachelor degree of science in Business Administration in 1989.
Mr. LAU is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants as well as a member of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the
chief financial officer and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board, since April 2003. Mr.
LAU has served as an independent non-executive director of China
Qinfa Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board since June
2009. Mr. LAU also has served as non-executive director of ZMFY
Automobile Glass Services Limited, a company listed on the GEM
Board since September 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHONG Man Kit, aged 36, was appointed as the chief financial
officer and company secretary of our Group on 17 July 2012. Mr.
Chong has over 14 years of professional experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate financial management. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. CHONG worked as an audit manager in KPMG with
international work exposure in Hong Kong, mainland China and
United Kingdom from 2001 to 2010. During his tenure with KPMG,
he was experienced in providing audit and advisory services to
clients listed in New York, London and Hong Kong. Mr. CHONG
was the chief financial officer and deputy general manager of a
subsidiary of an American listed company from 2010 to 2012. Mr.
CHONG studied at Indiana University Bloomington in the United
States and graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in 2001
with a Degree (Honors) of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr.
CHONG is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and is an IFRS certificate holder of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. ZOU Qing Long, aged 49, is a director and general manager
of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. ZOU has joined our Group since May
2004. Mr. ZOU is principally responsible for our Group’s overall
operational management in Nanjing. Mr. ZOU has accumulated
around eleven years of management and operation experience
in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry
Mr. Zou’s major responsibility with the Group includes managing
and coordinating operation workflow, recruitment and training of
managers under his supervision, developing guidelines of operation
and maintenance. He is overseeing operations in our terminals in
Nanjing, Ningbo and Tianjin. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in the China Maritime Safety Administration for 16 years in which he
gained valuable maritime logistics experience. Mr. ZOU graduated
from Nanjing Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army with a bachelor degree in Economics Management in 2003.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 56, is the deputy general
manager of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. LAU is principally
responsible for our Group’s business and new project development
of petrochemical terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated
around 25 years of management and operation experience in the
terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU
was an engineer of ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988
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Directors and Senior Management

to 2004 and he assumed management roles in HSE, logistics,
operations and maintenance. Mr. LAU graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering
in 1979. Mr. LAU was elected as a Graduate of the Institution of
Engineers, Australia on 10 January 1985 and has been included in
the list of competent persons for Class 2-inspection and certification
of LPG compound and cylinder stores by Electrical & Mechanical
Services Department, Government of Hong Kong since 6 November
1996. He joined our Group in April 2005 as a project manager.

Mr. LI Lian Chun, aged 55, is the general manager of Tianjin
Tianlong. Mr. LI has joined our Group since March 1994. Mr.
LI is principally responsible for our Group’s overall operational
management in Tianjin including managing and coordinating
workflow, setting up annual budget and fiscal plan, providing training
and recruitment of managers. Mr. LI has accumulated around 19
years of management and operation experience in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry since his joining our
Group in 1994. Mr. LI graduated from Tianjin Normal University with
a bachelor of Art degree in English in 1984 and completed Post
Graduate Course for Further Study in business management in
Nankai University.

Mr. XIANG Xiao Chu, aged 58, is the general manager of Ningbo
Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group
since November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 21 years of management and operation
experience of which around 18 years are in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division deputy chief of
Human Resource and Security and an office administrator in Ningbo
No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang Province from February
1988 to October 1992. During the period from November 1992
to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an office administrator
handling selection and recruitment of new staff, finance management
and observing compliance of HSE policies of Zhejiang Chemicals
Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has served as a deputy
director and director of tank field, business manager and general
manager assistant in Ningbo Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang since
October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed administration management
course of Self-Study Examination of the Higher Education of Zhejiang
Province in October 1990.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service
providers that specialises in the handling and storage of liquid
chemical products at three terminals in Nanjing, Tianjin and Ningbo.
Strategically located in one of the major petrochemical industry
clusters in China, the Group has set up jetties and tank farms
(“Terminals”) along the coastal area to seize the rising demand of
the petroleum and chemical industries. Dragon Crown offers a high
quality and comprehensive range of liquid chemical terminal and
storage services to customers through its own jetties, storage tanks
and dedicated pipelines.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s throughput
volume of liquid chemical products handled by Nanjing, Tianjin and
Ningbo terminals reached 1,722,100 metric tonnes, 170,000 metric
tonnes and 253,500 metric tonnes (2012: 1,717,700 metric tonnes,
67,100 metric tonnes and 329,300 metric tonnes) respectively, with
a combined throughput volume amounting to 2,145,600 metric
tonnes (2012: 2,114,100 metric tonnes). The following table provides
an overview of the existing terminals and facilities as at 31 December
2013:

E £ ]

EASTE —RELNRABERBEHE
B EBEEER  RERERN=(EHEE
EIREENFETRECRM - KA1
HEXEFEEZ2ABCTITENRSE
o AEECESSHRET TR RE
& (TSR ) BB A At TIT ¥ B miE R
MmER - EAEBEAABE  RELE
REEREPREHSRERGENARL
BnfET LSRR -

REZE2013F 12 A31BILEE - RE@P
MR RENESBHEEENRELCER
EHEDRA51,722,100 218 - 170,000 &
8 K% 253,500 A WA (20124 : 1,717,700 &
5 - 67,100 A M8 & 329,300 AME) » & P&
M 23%2,145,600 AME(20124F : 2,114,100
AWE) o TREYR2013412 A31 BHE
BTG RRMEE -

Existing Terminals and facilities Nanjing Ningbo Tianjin Total
REBAKRRIE BR B RE wE
Number of tanks (TS 31 12 15 58
Storage capacity (m®) FRAE (LK) 190,000 29,000 24,900 243,900
Number of berth AR 3 1 1 5
Berthing capacity (dwt) JERZEE ) (FEME) 45,000* 3,000 3,000
Jetty designed throughput ISEERGT B E

capacity (metric tonnes) (Amg) 4,000,000 100,000 300,000 4,400,000

* Comprises three berths with capacity of 20,000 dwt, 20,000 dwt
and 5,000 dwt, respectively.

Situated in the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park, the Group’s flagship
terminal is the main source of revenue and profit, accounting for
94.3% (2012: 96.6%) of the Group’s total profit during the year. The
Group’s major customer, Celanese Corporation (NYSE: CE), a world
leading producer of acetyl products, is also situated in the industrial
park and accounted for 86.9% of the Group’s total revenue during
the year — equivalent to HK$234.5 million (2012: HK$227.8 million).

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZERAR AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The construction of Nanjing Terminal Phase Il has been completed
and commenced operation in June 2013, which has helped further
expand and achieve a storage capacity of 190,000 m?3. Comprising
eleven tanks with a total capacity of 38,000 ms3, the new facility
began generating revenue in June 2013.

The Group started work on the assembly of its second cryogenic
ethylene tank during the first quarter of 2013, which will be able
to store deep cooled liquids at-104° C. With the smooth progress
in the construction to date, the 20,000 mS3 tank is scheduled to
be operational by the third quarter of 2014, and requires not only
specific expertise to construct but also to maintain and operate.

Dragon Crown continues to maintain stable financial health, with total
assets of more than HK$1,229.0 million (2012: HK$1,042.0 million)
and total equity of HK$1,011.5 million (2012: HK$958.6 million). The
Group is in a strong financial position with cash balance of HK$320.5
million (2012: HK$265.7 million) and the gearing ratio has remained
at a healthy level of 12.1% (2012: 1.2%).

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Group remains positive about the future outlook of the chemical
storage and logistics industry continuing to ride on its existing
successful business model and enhance its infrastructure to facilitate
future growth initiatives. The Group has completed the construction
of its Nanjing Terminal Phase lll in mid 2013 and is expected to make
a full contribution in 2014.

Dragon Crown’s main business objective is to enhance its leading
position in the coastal regions of China, particularly along the
Yangtze River Delta region. As a result, besides strengthening its
existing infrastructure, the Group will also explore and nurture new
and existing business partnerships and collaboration opportunities.

By relying on the Group’s successful management and operational
excellence, Dragon Crown will continue to excel as it maintains its
leading position as an integrated terminal service provider in China,
as well as delivering the best results to its shareholders.

EEENWED T

ERGEEZHERT - WH2013F6 A
FIaEE BN E—SPBAREINFR
A= 190,000 75K o Fa e B iE T — R
T ATFREAE /38,0003 5K - 72013
Fo6 AMRELERA -

REBMMN2013FE —ZERIARESE M
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“EFEARAESE  TEFZAEERRE
ENEBREE  EFERREENG RS
E N EE -

EORBERISBRNT AN BEHEE
= 12.290 B8 7T (2012 4F : 10.420 1878 7T)
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53,205 1887 (20124 : 2.657 BB T) &2
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the revenue of the Group
increased by 4.8% to HK$270.0 million from HK$257.8 million in
2012. The increase was mainly due to the HK$12.0 million new
revenue generated from Nanjing terminal. The remaining was mainly
due to the combined effects of the appreciation in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
and the decrease in excess throughput revenue from the major
customer.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2013, gross profit increased by
5.5% from HK$153.4 million in 2012 to HK$161.9 million. The gross
profit margin slightly increased by 0.5% to 60.0%.

The cost of services provided increased to HK$108.1 million in
2013 compared with HK$104.4 million in 2012 which was mainly
due to the combined effects of the appreciation in RMB, increase in
depreciation and decrease in total cost of diesel fuel.

Other income
Other income decreased to HK$13.0 million from HK$22.1 million
in 2012. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in arbitration

income from a debtor, and the entire amount has been settled before
31 December 2013.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses slightly increased by 0.8% to HK$34.2
million from HK$34.0 million in 2012.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year dropped sharply to HK$3.3 million from
HK$5.7 million in 2012. The decrease was due to the decrease in
bank interest rate during the year.

Share of profits of joint ventures and associates

The business of the joint ventures achieved stable growth during the
year.

The business of the associates turned into making profits during the
year.

Tax expense

The tax expense for the year decreased slightly to HK$25.8 million
from HK$26.0 million in 2012. It was mainly due to the decrease in
the other income, which was not entitled to preferential tax treatment
and was subject to a PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25%.
This led to a decrease in the effective tax rate to 17.9% in the year,
compared with 18.6% in 2012.

EEENWED T
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fee and other related
expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares in 2011.

These net proceeds were applied up to the year ended 31
December 2013 in accordance with the proposed applications
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the Prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and the
Announcement dated 6 February 2013 headed “Change of use of
proceeds”, as follows:

Construction of second cryogenic RS 2 KR
ethylene tank Vil =y

Construction of our third jetty SRR EE 3 EETGER

Construction of our dedicated railway system — EREFEKEL

Construction of nine general purpose BFROE—MmAR
storage tanks ey

General working capital —MREEES

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits
or time deposits with banks in Hong Kong and Nanjing as at 31
December 2018.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZERAR AT
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HheHEERAREMBE@EEREZ ZFER
THREEA) 2,811 BT ©

BIEHEA2011F5 4300 2 MR =R ([
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Net proceeds (HK$ million)

FEREFE(EEET)

Available Utilised Unutilised
AEA 2EA KRENA
133.1 91.9 41.2
46.6 46.6 -
40.0 - 40.0
33.3 33.3 -
28.1 28.1 -
281.1 199.9 81.2
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to HK$149.0 million (2012: HK$12.0 million), which included RMB
bank loans of RMB50.0 million (2012: RMB9.7 million). The Group’s
gearing ratio (total bank loans to total assets) was 12.1% at 31
December 2013 (2012: 1.2%). The gearing structure was as follows:

Total bank loans IRITE 4%
Total assets BERE
Gearing ratio BEAGE

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$372.8 million (2012: HK$314.7 million)
and HK$76.8 million (2012: HK$77.3 million), respectively. As at 31
December 2013, the Group’s current ratio increased to 4.9 (2012:
4.1).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and adopts
a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy capital ratio
and support its business expansion requirements.

EEENWED T

BEER  THEeRBEARE

MH2013F 12 31 H - AEBERITE AT
1,490 7L (20124 « 1,200887C) © B
EARS,0008 T2 ARKERITER (2012
F: AREEIT0E L) - 20135 12 A 31
H - A&EEsEEBEX(RITEREHER
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2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
149,035 12,031
1,229,022 1,042,014
12.1% 1.2%
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DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans is set out below:

RHERAER

AEBRITEROEFPEOREEINNT -

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Repayable FEIZRUR
Within one year —FR 14,167 12,031
In the second year E_F 92,368 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-ZhF (BEBERSF) 42,500 -
149,035 12,031

Note: All bank loans at 31 December 2013 are denominated in RMB and
HK currency.

PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in
RMB and HKS$. Its operating cash inflows and outflows were primarily
denominated in RMB and HK$. During the year, the Group did not
have any material foreign exchange exposure and had not used any
financial instruments for hedging purpose. As part of the Group’s
bank borrowings were denominated in RMB, the interest rates of
these bank borrowings are fixed from time to time. The Group will
closely monitor the interest rate movements and regularly review its
other banking facilities so as to mitigate the expected interest rate
risk.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZERAR AT
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of capital commitments as at 31 December 2013 are set out
in note 34 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 250 full
time employees (2012: 255). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the PRC.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year, the Group made no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies.

EEENWED T

BERERBRARAR

BREK2013F 12 A31 B EARNEIE 75515 -
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BEERBRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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THE BOARD

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4 executive
directors, and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board comprises the following directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. LUO Shijie
Mr. ZHU Wujun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and
set out in writing.

Currently, the Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice whereas the Chief Executive
Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors representing one-
third of the Board with at least one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all independent non-executive directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, APPOINTMENT AND RE-
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
Board composition, monitoring the appointment of directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company is
appointed for a specific term of one year and is subject to retirement
by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr
Ng Wai Man, Mr Ting Yian Ann and Mr Lau Sik Yuen shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Continuing briefing and professional development for directors will
be arranged where necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the following directors
attended seminar(s) and training session(s) arranged by professional
institution(s)/professional firm(s):

Directors Topic

Executive Directors

Mr. NG Wai Man Updates of Corporate Governance

and Listing Rules Compliance

Mr. TING Yian Ann Updates of Corporate Governance

and Listing Rules Compliance

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin Updates of Corporate Governance

and Listing Rules Compliance

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming Updates of Corporate Governance

and Listing Rules Compliance
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Directors Topic

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Updates of Corporate Governance

and Listing Rules Compliance

Director’s traning and insider
information rules

Mr. LUO Shijie Updates of Corporate Governance
and Listing Rules Compliance
Mr. ZHU Wujun Updates of Corporate Governance

and Listing Rules Compliance

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update/seminar handouts have been provided to the directors for
their reference and studying.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 143.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely, Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skKills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for
election at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.
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The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of all directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year under
review to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of all directors and senior management and
other related matters.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie
and Mr. ZHU Wujun, (including one independent non-executive
director with the appropriate professional qualifications). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditors
before submission to the Board

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s

financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year under
review to review interim and annual financial results and reports
and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions
and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the executive directors.

The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out in the table
below:

ESREAERAHFGCE

REEHEEHE2013F12A31BILFER
THNERENEFELZEESEUNEAAT
BERAEHHELSEEINIMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

Nomination
Name of Director Board Committee
EEpns Ezg REZE®
Mr. Ng Wai Man 4/4 11
RERS%E
Mr. Ting Yian Ann 4/4 1/1
BREREE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin 4/4
HREEE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming 4/4
BR=Brt
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 4/4 1/1
BHREE
Mr. Luo Shijie 4/4 11
L Q7 Sl
Mr. Zhu Wujun 4/4 11
RRELAE

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of executive directors during the year.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least

14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZERAR AT

HE/ERRH
Remuneration Audit Annual General
Committee =~ Committee Meeting
yMZzEE ERZEEE RREEAE
11 11
11 11
11
11
11 2/2 11
1/1 2/2 11
1/1 2/2 11

BRERESTS RN TRTRFALES
VIFMTEFRTESR MEATESD

o

3 K

EFEFFAHRIET

EE-RUSFTHEEFASEHLES

SERIZARS -

THESeeRBARNERARD 148 H
EREFUL HUESFTSEHRA
FHAEBA -

|—pee



Corporate Governance Report

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 52 to 53.

Where appropriate, a statement will be submitted by the Audit
Committee explaining its recommendation regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors and the
reasons why the Board has taken a different view from that of the
Audit Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors, Messrs Emst & Young,

in respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below:

Service Category

AR RV SLAZ BN B BR 1R L RS IR A
EEZAREEZBAFNES2ESZIELZ
B BENRE R o

HERER
S HNETL B E
BHTRERZ

FERABRT BZERE
?ﬁQEL C R E - BHRBL
MEZR  AREFE

JREA -

B
h

HES 1% B Bl B 1% B B R B
REZE2013F 12 A31 HIEFE  BAZER
ERIEZBRBEN BN FAREINE
ZEEN oK RN B SFT 2 FNE A0 T

Fees Paid/Payable (HK$)

PRS2 B 2t EAEH(EE)
Audit Services ZERTS
— Annual audit — FEEZ 1,060,000
— Independent auditors letter on continuing —EAFEEB R Z8
connected transactions J&) 7 A% BRI R 14 40,000
Non-audit Services IERZERTE
— Review of interim results —EHPEIEE 328,000
— Taxation services — TSRS 98,500
1,526,500

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an annual basis through
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the
Group.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholder(s) held at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be called for the transaction of any
business specified in the written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

There are no statutory provisions granting the right to shareholders
to put forward or move new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman lIslands Companies Law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Fax: 2587 1338

Email: myfarm@dragoncrown.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, except for
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee, are available to answer questions at shareholder
meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
19 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 54 to 141.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents (2012: Nil) per share was paid on
30 September 2013.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK3.8 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on Tuesday, 27 May 2014. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial
position.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years, as extracted from audited financial statements,

is set out on page 142. The summary does not form a part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZERAR AT

EEMAEREFTTREARENSEE
BEBRAR(TARART]) REMBAR (A
£E DEZE2013F 12 A1 HILFE 2 &5
Z R -

ERERE

ARTZ T ELBAREEN - TENB
ARz EEEBHERNMBREN
19« G+ SR E B T 0 A 5
SRR -

ERERRR

KREBPEZE2013F12 AT BIEFEZ %
FARA RG] RAEERZ B 2 H AR
HNES4E 141 B2 ITEHE o

MR2013%E 9 A30H & ik {1 & A% 2.0 1l
(20124 : &) 2 HARR B -

BREEMN2014F5 27 H(2H-) &
EERBBYAATREAM 2 REIRA
HE2013F 12 A31 B IEFERNRPREE
MR 3.8l - AR BBFRER
EERRAFAKE LitE - REEZDY!
AT BHEA » WHP B RE AT
E R BB S AT o

LFEMBRE

AREBE R AN R E A  AER
BEBENES S ERRAHRE - T8
RNE142E - WEBETRRER R HH
K25 -

ME - BB R

AEBZME  BEMRBERFAZES
BRI IRRMITE6 o



BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are
set out in note 30 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 58 and 59, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$536.2 million (2012:
HK$582.3 million), of which HK$42.2 million has been proposed
as a final dividend for the year. In accordance with Section 34 of
the Companies Law, dividend may be paid out of the amount of
HK$431.5 million (2012: HK$431.5 million) of the Company’s share
premium account subject to a solvency test and the provisions of the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 94.9% and 41.6% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 47.2% and
19.8% of the total cost of services for the year.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial
interests in the Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to
above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Yian Ann (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Chong Yat Chin

Ms. Chan Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen

Mr. Luo Shijie

Mr. Zhu Wujun

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Ng Wai Man, Mr. Ting Yian Ann and Mr. Lau Sik Yuen are subject
to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence

from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the date
of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Ng Wai Man has entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years which commenced on 1
December 2010. Mr. Ng has entered into a renewal contract with
the Company on 2 April 2014 for a term of three years effective
from 1 December 2013 and will continue thereafter for successive
one-year terms until terminated by not less than three months’
written notice.

Mr. Ting Yian Ann has entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years which commenced on 1
December 2010. Mr. Ting has entered into a renewal contract with
the Company on 2 April 2014 for a term of three years effective
from 1 December 2013 and will continue thereafter for successive
one-year terms until terminated by not less than three months’
written notice.

Mr. Lau Sik Yuen has renewed service contracts with the Company
for a term of one year effective from 1 December 2011 and will
continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until terminated by
not less than one month’s written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 35 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
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Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in WNIRIE B AN HIEIRGIE K ETHRE L
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO BErfR s kKRR IR IBE &5
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange ETRB(T EmRA D Msk+rrs 2 £
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors BITANEFHETE X HHEESTR|([Z
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the PR BITAME R AT N2
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the FoxkamT -

“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

() Interests in the shares of the Company () RERARGDZER
Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
Personal Corporate share capital
Name of directors Interests Interests Total of the Company
EERRARE
BRITRE
BEpg BARS ARER @t EOER
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) RERFE(REE]) 852,000  778,902,0009 779,754,000 70.26%
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (*Mr. TING”) BREREE(FEEE]) - 33,380,000 33,380,000 3.00%
Mr. Chong Yat Chin (‘Mr. CHONG") 3 A& &£ ([H%E£]) 762,000 15,950,000¢ 16,712,000 1.50%
Ms. Chan Wan Ming (‘Ms. CHAN") FRE18 4+ ([t ]) 184,000 - 184,000 0.01%

Notes: Mzt -

1. All interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were 1. BERARABRDZABERSBTER °

long positions.

2. Mr. NG is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of 2.
Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure
Port”) and therefore is deemed to be interested in a total of
778,902,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port.

3. Mr. TING is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of 3.
Ansen International Limited (“Ansen”) and therefore is deemed to be
interested in 33,380,000 shares of the Company held by Ansen.

4. Mr. CHONG is the beneficial owner of all issued share capital of 4.
Silver Coin International Limited (“Silver Coin”) and therefore is
deemed to be interested in 15,950,000 shares of the Company
held by Silver Coin.
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the

Company

Name of

associated
Name of directors corporation Capacity
EENR HEEEER 54
Mr. NG Lirun Beneficial owner
RoEE pab EmEAA
Mr. NG Sure Port Beneficial owner
RoLE BB EnEAA
Mr. TING Ansen Beneficial owner
FRSTAE EnEAA
Mr. CHONG Silver Coin Beneficial owner
A EnEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to the directors of
the Company, the following persons or corporations (other than
directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO or as otherwise naotified to the Company were as follows:
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Number of shares
or underlying shares

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity held in the Company of the Company
)i N HERARREDH

RER M E 54 FrisEE R4 TRABNE DL

Lirun Beneficial owner® 762,402,000 68.70%

Wb EnEBEAQ

Notes: BaE -

1. The interest of the substantial shareholder in the shares of the 1. FERFRADRBRMD ZESHBITE -

Company was long position.

2. Mr. NG is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital
of Lirun and therefore is deemed to be interested in a total of
762,402,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors
of the Company are not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long
term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract and
retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2013.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed on the confirmations from the Covenantors
and concluded that the Deed has been complied with and has been
effectively enforced.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has
granted to the Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance
with the announcement and/or independent shareholders’ approval
requirement for the following transactions subject to (i) the directors
confirming that those transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (i) the proposed
annual caps for those transactions are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction TREVIZEFFRRIFEZIN2013F 2

amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2013: FEFREEBRZ 55
Annual cap Actual transaction amount
ERIR ERRSE
Approx. Approx.
e nE
Connected transactions Connected person (RMB'000) (HK$'000) (RMB’000) (HK$'000)
BEXS BEAT (ARBFTT) (FEn)  (ARBTR) (F&m)

(A} Related Party Terminal Service M\ TEERE S

Agreements
() Renewed Nanjing Phenol Dragon Crown Investments Limited
Storage Agreement (‘DC Investments”)
AEHER AR GRS EMCIARERAR

(M IER ) 1,200 1514 1,180 1489
(i) Ningbo Storage Agreements  Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon

Crown Chemical International

Trade Company Ltd. (Ningbo DC”)

ZEEREG RS ERRTEEMCTER
BHBRAA ([ZRED]) 2,696 3,401 2,438 3,075
3,896 4,915 3,618 4,564
(B)  Pipe Racks Agreements ERpE
() Pipe Racks Services Nanjing Chemical Industry
Agreements Park Company Limited
ERREHE (“Nanjing CIPC")
HRLEIEEBRAR
(lE@xclPc)) 10,346 13,051 9,758 12,310
(i) Security Services Nanjing Chemical Industry
Agreement Park Public Services Company
Rz BB S Limited (“Nanjing CIPPS’)
ERLETEEAREEAR
EEAR)([AERCPPS]) 763 963 763 963
11,109 14,014 10,621 13,273
() Renewed Office Lease Agresment  DC Investments
SEHRAZRERE B IR 1,404 1,494
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Related Party Terminal Service Agreements

The Group entered into two related party terminal service
agreements, namely Renewed Nanjing Phenol Storage
Agreement and Ningbo Storage Agreements (collectively
the “Related Party Terminal Service Agreements”), which
constitute continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. Pursuant to Listing Rules 14A.25 and 14A.26,
the transactions under the Related Party Terminal Service
Agreements and the annual cap amounts of the transactions
thereunder have been aggregated. Details of the Related Party
Terminal Service Agreements are as follows:

(@ Renewed Nanjing Phenol Storage Agreement

On 3 December 2012, Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid
Chemical Terminal Company Limited (“Nanjing Dragon
Crown”) and DC Investments entered into the Renewed
Nanjing Phenol Storage Agreement pursuant to
which Nanjing Dragon Crown agreed to provide DC
Investments with terminal and storage services for
Phenol at the terminal of Nanjing Dragon Crown. The
term of the Renewed Nanjing Phenol Storage Agreement
is for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2015.

DC Investments is owned as to 98% by Mr. NG, a
director and a controlling shareholder of the Company.
It is principally engaged in trading of chemicals and
investment holdings. According to the Listing Rules,
DC Investments is an associate of Mr. NG and thus a
connected person. As DC Investments is a connected
person of the Company, the Renewed Nanjing Phenol
Storage Agreement constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Rule 14A.14 of the
Listing Rules.
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The fees for the services provided are principally
determined by () the storage capacity of the tank to
be provided by the Group to DC Investments; and (i)
the duration for the storage of Phenol at the Group’s
terminal in Nanjing with reference to the market price.
The terms offered by DC Investments to Nanjing Dragon
Crown are no less favourable than those offered by
other Independent Third Parties in the ordinary course of
business.

Pursuant to the mutual agreement between the parties,
the Renewed Nanjing Phenol Storage Agreement was
terminated with effect from 27 October 2013.

Ningbo Storage Agreements

On 3 December 2012, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC
entered into the Ningbo Storage Agreement, pursuant
to which Ningbo Ningxiang agreed to provide Ningbo
DC with terminal and storage services at the Group’s
terminal in Ningbo. The term of the Ningbo Storage
Agreement is for the period of three years from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2015.

On 16 July 2013, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC
entered into an additional order for terminal and storage
services for Methanol (together with the Ningbo Storage
Agreement, the “Ningbo Storage Agreements”) at the
Group’s terminal in Ningbo.

Ningbo DC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of DC
Investments which in turn is owned as to 98% by
Mr. NG, a director and a controlling shareholder. It is
principally engaged in trading of chemicals. According
to the Listing Rules, Ningbo DC is an associate of
Mr. NG and thus a connected person. As Ningbo DC
is a connected person of the Company, the Ningbo
Storage Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.14 of the
Listing Rules.
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The fees for the services provided are principally
determined by (i) the quantity of the liquid chemical
products handled by the Group; and (i) the period for the
storage of the liquid chemical products at the terminal
with reference to the market price. The terms offered by
Ningbo DC to Ningbo Ningxiang are no less favourable
than those offered by other Independent Third Parties in
the ordinary course of business.

Pipe Racks Agreements

The Group entered into the Pipe Racks Services Agreements
and the Security Services Agreement (collectively the “Pipe
Racks Agreements”), which constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules 14A.25 and 14A.26, the transactions under the Pipe
Racks Agreements and the annual cap amounts of the
transactions thereunder have been aggregated.
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In March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPC entered into
a pipe racks services agreement (the “Pipe Racks Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease
to the Group the pipe racks for the Acetic Acid pipelines and
Methanol pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Pipe Racks Services Agreement was supplemented by (i) a
supplemental agreement dated 28 September 2007, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe
racks for the Vinyl Acetate and Acetic Anhydride pipelines
at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park; (i) a supplemental
agreement dated 12 October 2007, pursuant to which Nanjing
CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for the
Ethylene pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park;
(iii) a supplemental agreement dated June 2008, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the
pipe racks for the sub-pipelines of the Group connecting to
the pipelines of two customers of Celanese; (iv) the Fourth
Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement entered into between
the Group and Nanjing CIPC on 3 December 2012, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the
pipe racks for the Ethyl Acetate and Ethanol pipelines at the
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The Fourth Supplemental
Pipe Racks Agreement shall be with effect from 1 March 2013;
and (v) the Fifth Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement entered
into between the Group and Nanjing CIPC in August 2013,
pursuant to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease the Group the
pipe racks for cryogenic ethylene at Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park. The Fifth Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement were
effective from 1 October 2013 and was entered into to modify
the previous pipe racks agreements with an additional annual
cost of approximately RMB956,000 for renting additional pipe
racks. The Pipe Racks Services Agreements are for a period
of 15 years from 15 March 2007 to 14 March 2022 and can
be extended for a further five years upon expiry unless the
parties thereto terminate the Pipe Racks Services Agreements.
The fees payable for the pipe racks rental by the Group are
principally determined by the occupied area of pipelines in
the pipe racks rented to the Group by Nanjing CIPC subject
to adjustment with reference to bank lending interest rate,
consumer price index, inflation, etc.. The terms offered by
Nanjing CIPC to the Group are no less favourable than those
offered by other Independent Third Parties in the ordinary
course of business.
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In addition, in March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPPS,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, entered into
a security services agreement (the “Security Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPPS agreed to
provide security services for the pipe racks rented by the
Group at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. Nanjing CIPPS
shall provide security, patrol and monitor services of the
Group’s pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Security Services Agreement is for a period of 15 years from
15 March 2007 to 14 March 2022 and can be extended for
a further five years upon expiry unless the parties thereto
terminate the Security Services Agreements.

Nanjing CIPC is interested in 11.39% equity interest in Nanjing
Dragon Crown, which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Nanjing CIPC is thus a connected person of the
Company solely by reason that it is a substantial shareholder
of Nanjing Dragon Crown. In addition, since Nanjing CIPPS
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, it is thus a
connected person of the Company by reason that it is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, a substantial
shareholder of Nanjing Dragon Crown.

As each of Nanjing CIPC and Nanjing CIPPS is a connected
person of the Company, each of the Pipe Racks Agreements
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules.

The fees payable for the security services by the Group under
the Security Services Agreement are principally determined by
the length of pipe racks at a maximum of 10 kilometres which
requires the provision of security services by Nanjing CIPPS.
The terms offered by Nanjing CIPPS to the Group are no less
favourable than those offered by other Independent Third
Parties in the ordinary course of business.
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(C) Renewed Office Lease Agreement

On 3 December 2012, the Renewed Office Lease Agreement
was entered into between DC Investments as landlord and
the Group as tenant in respect of the premises located at Unit
No. 3 on the 18th Floor of Convention Plaza, Office Tower,
No. 1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong, with a gross floor area of
approximately 2,227 square feet for a fixed term of three years
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. The property is
currently occupied by the Group for office use.

The annual rent payable to DC Investments was determined at
arm'’s length negotiation between the parties to the Renewed
Office Lease Agreement with reference to the valuation made
by the independent property valuer of the Company, Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, and the previous
transaction between the parties.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
its business; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (jii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have not qualified its report in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable

date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ng Wai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 RS

e
EY =

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 141, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A8 3L
:%'}: (=] Eﬁ%
Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F 12 A31 HILFE

REVENUE

Cost of services provided

Gross profit

Other income
Administrative expenses
Finance costs
Share of profits and losses of:
Associates
Joint ventures

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
(HK cents)

Basic

WA

AR
EF

HAb WA
TR

B E RN
eGSR R
NS
BEhE

BRBE AT R

IR
FREF

AT AL -
ZAN/NETE 2SN
FEFERR

RATHEEA
PEiE B IR B R (BAL)

R

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note

14 to the financial statements.
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Notes
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2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
270,020 257,770
(108,142) (104,361)
161,878 153,409
12,087 22,057
(34,240) (33,977)
(3,274) (5,722)
409 (1,391)
6,325 5,555
144,085 139,931
(25,778) (25,991)
118,307 113,940
104,234 99,100
14,073 14,840
118,307 113,940
9.39 8.93

BRAAFREERSNFBRER M BRERME
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income
to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Share of other comprehensive
income of associates:
Changes in exchange reserve

Share of other comprehensive
income of joint ventures:
Changes in exchange reserve

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

REZERER

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F 12 A31 HILFE

2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MosE FTHT T
FERRF 118,307 113,940
Hi2mEUWA
REEHRETSER
Bz Hih2EUEA -
PR B R A Y
HEb2mEA
PE 5 e E) 592 149
E(hEa &R
HE2EBA ¢
P& W EEEE) 676 201
BMEGINETEH
TE R =RE 21,961 7,364
23,229 7,714
EREE
WA %8 141,536 121,654
AT AL REG -
ZIN/NEIET 2N 13 125,569 106,200
FEFE AR 15,967 15,454
141,536 121,654
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e Mg R &R
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 16 753,710 635,623
Prepaid land lease payments FEf L E 17 42,580 42,340
Goodwill G 18 1,210 1,210
Investments in associates REEZ N BRI E 20 20,424 19,423
Investments in joint ventures REECERE 21 27,729 26,878
Prepayments SEANE-N 23 10,618 403
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 27 - 1,452
Total non-current assets EmENEERE 856,271 727,329
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 3,623 4,448
Accounts receivable JE Y BR TR 22 45,633 40,114
Prepayments, deposits BRR  EZe Rk
and other receivables H tib e W IE 23 3,040 4,408
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 24 320,455 265,715
Total current assets MENEEEE 372,751 314,685
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HitpeIgoa R EsrER 25 57,768 58,871
Interest-bearing bank loans FTERITEN 26 14,167 12,031
Tax payable FERSIHRIE 4,825 6,442
Total current liabilities mEEERE 76,760 77,344
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 295,991 237,341
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HWEERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,152,262 964,670
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Interest-bearing bank loans STEBRITER 26 134,868 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE 27 5,899 6,061
Total non-current liabilities EREEERE 140,767 6,061
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,011,495 958,609

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A



EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Issued share capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividends

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Ng Wai Man
RER
Director

EF

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M IARR R

R
RATERA
i g E

EBITRA
&
BRI

FFERER
REEAE

Notes

B aE

28
30
14

Ting Yian Ann
RE=
Director

EZE

31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRERT TET
110,966 110,966
789,463 728,391
42,167 61,031
942,596 900,388
68,899 58,221
1,011,495 968,609
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F 12 A31 HILFE

Note
i

At January 2018 R13E1518
Proft for e year Eiad
Othercomprehensive ncome o e year: EMEMATNA -
Stre of changes nexchange AN
Tesene0f associaes X RsY
S of changes nexchange Elipehs
reserve of ot ventures HESHERD
Exchenge iferences on tansaon of gL
foreign opertons EizE
Total comprehensiv income o e year EnRERSE
Appropriaon o stautoryresene AEieRE
Fire 2012 cvidends pid EfNERERS

BREHERERZRE
Captl corrbuton fom non-conrolig teests S 2RERHE
Itern 2013 didends N3RS 14

Propose el 2013 dends E200ERERS 1

Dividenos decéred o non-confroling inferests

At 31 December 2013 ROBE1RANA

*k

Attributable to owners of the Company

MiAREARLRR
Exchange Proposed

Issued Reserve fluctuation final Non-
capital Share  funds*  Capital  resee  Relained dividends controlling Total
B3 premium BB rseve EXEE  pofts  BEERE Tt iterests  equiy
7SR G AN fif  REEH ke i FERRE  RESE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
TRt TR TEm  TAm  TEm TH TH TR T

(note 30(alil) (note 30(a)) (note 30(a(i)
(I 0 (B 30(a ) (i 301

110066 431,509 9082 2%  §1289  A7TTe09 6103 00368 58221 95609
- - - 104284 10424 14078 118307
- - - 592 592 - 592
- - - 676 676 - 676
- - - 20,067 2,067 164 21.%1
- - - A% 10424 12559 15067 141,53
- - 1,19 (1,335) - (187) 137 -
- - - (61031 (61,031) - (608
- - . (15,598 (15,59
- - - - 10169 10,169
- - - (22,199 (22,199 - (219
- - - [aten  daier - - -
10066 4%f509%  0250%  22962* 06604  26048™  A2f67 942506 68890 1,011,495

The reserve funds include the share of reserves of associates and
joint ventures of HK$4,223,000 (2012: HK$4,090,000).

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$789,463,000 (2012: HK$728,391,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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At January 2012
Proftfor the year
Other compreensive ncome for the year.
Share of changes n exchange
reserve of associaes
Share of changes I exchange
reserve of ot venfures
Exchange iferences on franglaton
0fforelgn operations

Total comprehensive income for the year
Appropriaton to statutory resenve

Finl 2011 dlidends peid

Dividends decéred o non-confroling inferests

Capial contrbuton from non-controling inferests

Proposed firal 2012 cvidends

At31 December 2012

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Note

R1E1518
Ead
EREHATNA -
EERELA

X RgY
Elinehs
HERERD
gL
EiZE

S
=

f

EmRENAGE

RRivER

B EXERE
BREHERER RS
FERELE
EEN0ERERS 4

R1ERA A

AN < &
mEEREEHX
Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F 12 A31 HILFE

Attioutable fo owners of the Company

FATREARGER
Exchange Proposed
Issued Resene flctuation fing Non-
capial Share finds'  Captd  resene  Refaed  cividends cortroling Total
BEfT premium B owew  EERD ol BERE T leests ey

Bh RARE A EiER BE AR it & HHER  BegE
HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKBOO0  HKSOOD  HKBOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOWD
i A TR T TR TR TR TA TR T
(note: 30} (note 30 (note 30l
(o) (aa0mn) (B0
10%6 481509 T % 80160 14019 558 M9Rd 4400 U
- - - - - 99100 - W0 s 113940
= = = = 149 = = 149 = 149
- - - - WA - - 201 - 1
- - - - 6,750 - - 6,750 fid 7,364
- - - - 70 9910 - 1060 a4 12160
- - 1326 - - (149 - (159 18 -
- - - - - - By P - By
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= AN o~ —1
72 0 =] Eﬁlﬁlﬁii
Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F 12 A31 HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments
Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Share of profits and losses of:
Associates
Joint ventures

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable

Increase in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Increase in other
payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Dividends received

Increase in time deposits with original
maturity of over three months
when acquired

Net cash flows used in
investing activities
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24

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
144,085 139,931
3,274 5,722
(5,966) (3,497)
40,484 35,317
998 972

31 64
(409) 1,391
(6,325) (5,555)
176,172 174,345
943 (259)
(4,267) 66
(9,028) (554)
4,488 2,228
168,308 175,826
(26,427) (20,766)
141,881 155,060
(140,510) (95,794)
77 -
5,966 3,497
6,160 8,499
(38,421) -
(166,728) (83,798)




CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests

Repayment of bank loans

New bank loans

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests

Interest paid

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with
original maturity of less than three
months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Note
=S

BMEFHELEZ
RERE
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PERIRITER
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F 12 A31 HILFE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
10,169 11,178
(16,573) (144,132)
152,446 -
(83,224) (55,483)
(20,175) (16,225)
(3,274) (5,722)
39,369 (210,384)
14,522 (139,122)
265,715 403,243
1,797 1,694
282,034 265,715
101,007 64,101
181,027 201,614
282,034 265,715
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Statement of Financial Position

B AR R TR
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued share capital
Reserves

Proposed final dividends

TOTAL EQUITY

Ng Wai Man
RER
Director

EFE

FRBEE
RIB AR EIRE

FRBEERE
REBEE
BN BZE R
H A & WORR
RelBREEED
RBEERE
REAE
LA 5 R0
K&t &R

mEIBEAE
REBEESE
BEEE

Rz
BEBITRA
ki
AR

REEAE

it

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFH&EEZRAR A 5

Notes
B 5E

19

23
24

25

28
30(0)
14

Ting Yian Ann
REZ
Director

EF

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT
258,106 339,251
258,106 339,251
260,869 208,774
146,401 158,114
407,270 366,888
18,249 12,909
18,249 12,909
389,021 353,979
647,127 693,230
110,966 110,966
493,994 521,233
42,167 61,031
647,127 693,230




2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit No.3, 18th
Floor, Convention Plaza, Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road,
Hong Kong. The Group is principally engaged in terminal
storage and handling of liquid chemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Lirun Limited, which is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1
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31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H
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Notes to Financial Statements

BRI EE
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2013. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFH&EEZRAR A 5
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.
HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Amendments Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans
HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
11 and HKFRS and HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance
12 Amendments

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Amendments Financial Statements — Presentation

of ltems of Other Comprehensive
Income

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements

BRI EE
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 36
Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

Annual
Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 1 Amendments and
HKAS 36 Amendments, and certain amendments included in
Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle, the adoption of the
new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase

of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 2012

on these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

(@)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements and addresses the issues in HK(SIC)-Int 12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a
single control model used for determining which entities
are consolidated. To meet the definition of control in
HKFRS 10, an investor must have (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns. The changes introduced by
HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect to
determining which investees are controlled by the
Group.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 January 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BRI EE
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation. The classification of joint arrangements
under HKFRS 11 depends on the parties’ rights and
obligations arising from the arrangements. A joint
operation is a joint arrangement whereby the joint
operators have rights to the assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the arrangement and is accounted
for on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the joint
operators’ rights and obligations in the joint operation.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
joint venturers have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement and is required to be accounted for using
the equity method in accordance with HKAS 28 (2011).

As a result of the application of HKFRS 11, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect
to determining the forms of joint arrangement. The
application of HKFRS 11 does not change any of
conclusions of the Group’s joint ventures as at 1 January
2018.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number
of new disclosure requirements for these entities. Details
of the disclosures for subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are included in notes 19, 20 and 21 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). ltems
that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at
a future point in time (for example, exchange differences
on translation of foreign operations, net movement on
cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-
for-sale financial assets) are presented separately from
items which will never be reclassified (for example, the
revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments
have affected the presentation only and have had no
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group. The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income has been re-presented to reflect the changes.
In addition, the Group has chosen to use the new
title “statement of profit or loss” as introduced by the
amendments in these financial statements.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit which is
not impaired. In addition, the amendments require the
disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or
cash-generating units for which an impairment loss has
been recognised or reversed during the reporting period,
and expand the disclosure requirements regarding
the fair value measurement for these assets or units
if their recoverable amounts are based on fair value
less costs of disposal. The amendments are effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014 with earlier application permitted,
provided HKFRS 13 is also applied. The Group has early
adopted the amendments in these financial statements.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR MY R

31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

®  Annu
June
stand

al Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in
2012 sets out amendments to a number of
ards. There are separate transitional provisions

for each standard. While the adoption of some of the

amendments may result in changes in accounting

polic

ies, none of these amendments have had a

significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the

key amendments most applicable to the Group are as

follows:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative information beyond the
previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete
set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has
a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period are not required
to be presented.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

2.3

®)

(continued)

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.
The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities
to apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity
holders.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Clarifies
that major spare parts and servicing equipment
that meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment are not inventories.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

HKFRS 9

these financial statements.

Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 9, HKFRS  Hedge Accounting and amendments to

7 and HKAS 39
Amendments

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39°

HKFRS 10, HKFRS Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

12 and HKAS
27 (2011)
Amendments

and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment
Entities’

2.2

2.3
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Notes to Financial Statements

BRI EE
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferred Accounts*
HKAS 19 Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Amendments Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee Contributions?®

HKAS 32 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities"
HKAS 39 Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies!

Annual Amendments to HKFRSs issued in
Improvements January 20142
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Amendments to HKFRSs issued in
Improvements January 20142
2011-2013 Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available

for adoption

. Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements for a
period beginning on or after 1 January 2016

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in the statement
of profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the disposed operation and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
that are not classified as held for sale in accordance with
HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset or
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3.17%-19%
Motor vehicles 19%

Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
period the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.

Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rental payables under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in other operating expenses for
receivables.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (that is, the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or decreased
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised (ie. removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities which include other payables and accruals,
and interest-bearing bank loans are initially stated at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is currently an enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits and asset similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Inventories

Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use
in the operation, and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside the profit or loss
is recognised outside the profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the regions in which
the Group operates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHRREBEZ)
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued) FfBHt (&)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)

(b)

from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered;

rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

income from arbitration, when the legal rights has been
established and collectability is reasonably ascertained.

AR SRR M

31 December 2013
20134 12 A31H

FEEHBREE (2

WA FERR

MRBEENDATEERAANEE -
A X BESAR T T 5 L R] Se b5t
2 AlSmREA

(@)

RERS - NIRBC R E

Eo

HEUWA - EHOHELER

AREHE

MBHEA  REBEMEEAR
FHEEFE - BENEAH/R
BT AMFAIBERREE
HiR (0@ A ) AU ER (A T A 1R
RenERONEEZEemE
ERMFENME &

HEBA - EEERNERT
WHER A AU E -

Annual Report 2013 FE#{ &

89



Notes to Financial Statements

BRI
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the Company’s functional currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statement
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of those entities comprising the Group in which
their functional currencies are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of those entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting or
in the case of subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), by the board of directors. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,
at the end of each reporting period. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax treatment
of certain transactions are required in determining income tax
provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on
the straight-line basis over the property, plant and equipment’s
estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment to be five to
thirty years. Changes in the expected level of usage and/or
the period over which future economic benefits are generated
could impact the economic useful lives of the assets and,
therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment arises when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposal of the asset. WWhen
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2013 was
HK$1,210,000 (2012: HK$1,210,000). Further details are
given in note 18 to the financial statements.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment of
accounts receivable arising from the inability of its debtors to
make the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness, past repayment history and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis
of making the allowance. The carrying amount of accounts
receivable at 31 December 2013 was HK$45,633,000 (2012:
HK$40,114,000). Further details are given in note 22 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

No separate analysis of segment information is presented by
the Group as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and
assets are related to the terminal storage and handling of liquid
chemicals business in Mainland China.

Revenue from a major customer, whose entities below are
within the same group, in aggregate amounted to 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:

Customer A =P A
Customer B ZF B
Customer C =FC
Customer D ZFD
REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of services rendered for terminal storage
and the handling of liquid chemicals during the year, after
business tax and value-added tax.

OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group’s other income is as follows:

Bank interest income

RITHSWA

Gross rental income e As2z5s
Income from arbitration* R B REEI A *
Others HA

The balance represented the amount received, net of
expense, in relation to an arbitration case against a debtor.
The total amount awarded was RMB18,583,000 (equivalent
to HK$22,846,000), and the entire amount has been settled
before 31 December 20183.
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31 December 2013
20134 12 A31H

EEsBEH

MR AEERB 0% A ~ EE M
BERBNTEAMREBICERNGE
SR FMEERBERY - SAKEL
B2 #ER BT o

REMAREEWALLEE10% A E@Y
FERXF (BR—%E) K AZHIN
T

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TAT
112,392 113,517
87,144 92,170
22,978 22,081
12,012 -
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TERT TAT
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529 501
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12,987 22,057
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Notes to Financial Statements

e e
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERE

Group

REE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET

Interest on bank loans wholly ARAFRBEEE

repayable within five years IRITEREF A 3,274 5,722

9. FRIRATAF
9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

AEBENBRBAENEMR (G

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

- A)
(crediting):
2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B e FEx FET
Depreciation e 16 40,484 35,317
Amortisation of prepaid Eft L E
land lease payments B 5 17 998 972
Minimum lease payments WAEMER
under operating leases of BREERELD
office premises and pipe racks HERERERR 13,615 11,096
Auditors’ remuneration ZERRT N & 1,060 1,030
Directors’ remuneration E 10 7,773 7,560
Staff costs BITHRA (T
(excluding directors’ remuneration): ==& ) :
Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ T#& - #& & E Atz R 19,345 17,027
Pension scheme contributions* RIS B 3,719 3,164
23,064 20,191
Gross rental income WA mRzE 7 (529) (501)
Less: Outgoings B 28 26 25
(503) (476)
Loss on disposal of items of LEYE  BEK
property, plant and equipment REIEE 2 EE 31 64
Foreign exchange differences, net  [EH Z=%3 » /548 (5,935) (270)
* As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no forfeited * R2013F 12 831 8 ' AEE L E

contribution available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years.
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Notes to Financial Statements

10.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees
— Executive directors
— Independent non-executive directors
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

2013

Executive directors: RHTES
Mr. Ng Wai Man RERTE
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BREREE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HREEE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BBt

we -
—BITER
—BIFTES
HITESHMEFH
e RMEEDEN
RIRSFHEIMER

AR SRR M

31 December 2013
20134 12 A31H

ESHe

REBESHARIMBERAFRES L
AR Bl N B X BRI 161 (5RAT 3

BNFAEEMSWT
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHIT
540 540
7,203 6,985
30 €0
7,773 7,560

Salaries,
allowances Pension

and benefits scheme Total

Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e 2 Bike

e  REWER sTEIALR: A

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THAR TET TEL

- 935 - 935

- 3,434 - 3,434

- 1,474 15 1,489

- 1,360 15 1,375

- 7,203 30 7,233
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Notes to Financial Statements

BRI
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEM& (Z)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
= BKE
we  KEWEN sl Bz

HK$ ' 000 HK$'000 HK$ ' 000 HK$' 000
TET TAT TAT THT

2012
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man RERGHE - 935 - 935
Mr. Ting Yian Ann eyt - 3,000 - 3,000
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HHELE - 1,300 14 1,314
Ms. Chan Wan Ming FE Y - 1,200 14 1,214
Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen BRERE
(resigned on 17 July 2012) (R2012F7 B17 HEHT) - 550 7 557
- 6,985 35 7,020
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the FREAQNRBIYLIFRITES N2
Company during the year were as follows: WET -
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 2SRRI A& 240 240
Mr. Luo Shijie SRttt i e 150 150
Mr. Zhu Wujun KEELE 150 150
540 540
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FREEM B IERTE S H &
non-executive directors during the year (2012: Nil). B (20124 : &) o
Save as disclosed above, no remuneration was paid or B EXFriEE I - AREBRFEARL
payable by the Group to directors of the Company during the ELADMREMNEAAREEHNIE
year (2012: Nil). (20126 : &)
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10.

11.

Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2012: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2012: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2012: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining two (2012: one) highest paid employees who
are not directors of the Company, are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions IRIREFTEIHR

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

10.

11.

e RRMEEMER

AR SRR M

31 December 2013
20134 12 A31H

EEMe (=)

FA - AEBEWLEEM DB
RAEENME  (FANMALEH
A0 B B B SR SR A BB A (B
(20125 : &) o

RAFEER - HEESHEXFR BN
REAMEE L (2012F : &) o

RAFERARTEESTMERRIE=
FEEQ012F : MA) - EFMF
BEN EXMEE10 - R T M4 (2012
F—R)AFARAEENRSH
B 8 moFrBM s RS T

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRET TET
2,395 1,103

15 =

2,410 1,103

N T NI BENIFFEE S M
BEMBEBWT :

Number of employees

BENHA
2013 2012
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 87T 1,500,000 /87T 2 1

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2012: Nil).

REBERAFEAN L EEAE S E
Nhz&E=FESNME - R
AR DA £ (B85 1) 285 ok B L B
E(20124F : T) -
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Notes to Financial Statements

BRI
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

12. INCOME TAX

Current — Hong Kong BNER— &
Charge for the year REFZH
Over-provision in prior year FFE RS
Current — Elsewhere BVER— B fthith 75
Charge for the year REFZH
Under-provision in prior year FEERETR
Deferred AT
Total tax charge for the year AREEBIAY N85

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Under the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Implementation Rules (effective from 1 January 2008), the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rates for domestic and foreign-
invested enterprises are unified at 25%. The other major
tax concessions applicable to the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiary are detailed below.

Pursuant to the tax document Guoshui Han 2007 No. 2
“Approval on Enterprise Income Tax” issued by the national tax
authority of Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, Nanjing
Dragon Crown Liquid Chemical Terminal Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, is entitled to preferential tax treatment
with full tax exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
for the first five profitable years, commencing from 1 January
2007, and thereafter is entitled to a 50% deduction in the EIT
rate for the subsequent five years. The Group’s assessable
income was subject to an EIT rate of 12.5% for the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: 12.5%)).

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EH&EE1ZERAR A 5

12. Fifd#R

Group

rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
20 14
(10) -
19,429 21,154
320 228
6,019 4,595
25,778 25,991

EBFNEHEEAEFERNRBBESE
B 5T FERR B0 % A1 LA 16.5% (201 24F -
16.5%) FRT =B ©
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12,

INCOME TAX (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the

Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position

at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

Group - 2013

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the applicable tax rates
Lower tax rate due to concession
Income not subject to tax
Expense not deductible for tax
Tax loss utilised
Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous year
Effect of withholding tax on
the distributable
profits of the Group’s
Mainland China subsidiary,
associates and joint ventures

Tax charge for the year

BBATaM, (E18R)

RERABR X ENTIA
HRERSHE TR’
BARBA
TR A BT
BRH AR
BEFREBIEATIR

Z A

A& B P B A B B
nAE) -~ BERRR
BELEAINE
EAN BN E

RERBRIAFM

AR SRR M

31 December 2013
20134 12 A31H

12. PSR (Z)
RN B R BB B A Bl PTIE Rl AR R
BATE Bt 2 5+ 5 B AR BR 5 Al s A
T IAR X B AR B BRI R E
BB EBRAN T
REE 2013 F
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B&E HEARE Aat
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
THExT THET THERT
(1,669) 145,754 144,085
(275) 36,439 36,164
- (17,359) (17,359)
(1,848) (14) (1,862)
2,323 363 2,686
(180) - (180)
(10) 320 310
- 6,019 6,019
10 25,768 25,778
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PR AR MY R

31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

12. INCOME TAX (continued)

Group — 2012

Profit/(loss) before tax BB ADRT](E18)

Tax at the applicable tax rates REABETERNTIE

Lower tax rate due to concession ARELSTETERE

Income not subject to tax BEFRBRUBA

Expense not deductible for tax AT A F

Tax loss utilised BB ARIEEE

Adjustment in respect of current BEEEENEAFIE 2
tax of previous year PR

Effect of withholding tax on the R E AR B A TS
distributable profits of the NE) - BERE R
Group’s Mainland China subsidiary, BEPENHA
associates and joint ventures B A TR A R 2

Tax charge for the year RNEEHBRAL

The shares of tax attributable to associates and joint
ventures amounting to HK$233,000 (2012: HK$31,000)
and HK$2,289,000 (2012: HK$2,042,000) are included in
share of profits and losses of associates and joint ventures,
respectively, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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12. P8R (&)

REE —20124F

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
BA  RBIRREE #Et

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$' 000
T T T

(10,305) 150,236 139,931

(1,700) 37,559 35,859
= (16,405) (16,405)
(619) (1,435) (1,954)

2,422 = 2,422
(189) = (189)
= 228 228

= 6,030 6,030

14 25,977 25,991

EhHEEARREECERE
#233,000/% 70 (20124 : 31,000
HBIT) K% 2,289,000/ 7T (2012 4F :
2,042,000 7T) * EDRIFt ARG E
maA[ERBEARREGEREL
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13.

14.

Notes to Financial Statements

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 13.
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2013 includes a profit of
HK$451,000 (2012: loss of HK$1,751,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS 14.
Interim dividends — HK2.0 cents HHARR B — TR E B AR
(2012: nil) per ordinary share 2.0l (20124 : )
Proposed final dividends EEAARE —EK
- HK3.8 cents (2012: HK5.5 cents) 3 A% 3.8 I
per ordinary share (20124 : 5.5781l)

On 15 August 2013, the board of directors declared an interim
dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share.

The proposed final dividends for the year ended 31 December
2013 is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The proposed final dividends for the year ended 31 December
2012 was approved at the annual general meeting on 13 May
2013.

AR SRR M

31 December 2013
20134 12 A31H

FLFHAARGERT

NRBHAE AR B £2013F12
ABIEFEANEBIELGEE RN
#£451,0007%8 7T & % F (2012 4F :
1,751,000 8 THEE) - ERARAH
IR R -

BB
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$000
TER AT
22,193 -
42,167 61,031
64,360 61,031

MN2013E8 A15H B2 5RkE
A% &AL 2.0 B LRy P HARL B, -

HE2013F 12 A31 HILEENES
REFRE BN EER R BT RS /&
BARRBRERALE ©

ARARFR201345 5 13 B BRKARE

HAFRe EHOEREEZE2012F12 7
31 HIEFEREZRARIRE -
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B RS R 2R M

31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 15. FRFWAAELSRRF

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: FIRERENZEER -

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHIT
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to owners of the ZNNGIE 2D
Company, used in the basic earnings R - ARETE
per share calculation SRR EAREF] 104,234 99,100
Number of shares
RAEE
Shares [idvi)
Weighted average number of RARIBBITZ AR
ordinary shares of the Company IEFEHHAREE
in issue used in the basic BRERZF
1,109,662,000 1,109,662,000

earnings per share calculation

HAMFALEECEECRITER

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no ;
ARRR D - B 2 5 SRR EEE R A o

potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue for both years.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost:
At 1 January 2012
Addltions
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2012
and 1 January 2013

Addltions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2013

R
R2012E1A1R
HRE
B
tE
T

201212 A31 B
R2013%F1 A1H

g5
e
5 R

201312 31 B

Accumulated depreciation: 23t &

At 1 January 2012

Provided for during
the year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2012
and 1 January 2013

Provided for during
the year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2013

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

201261 A1 H
FREE-HE9

&
5 R

1201212 A31 B
R2013%F1 A1H
FREE-HE9

in=
& 5 %
1201312 A31 B

REFE
201312 A31 B

1201212 A31 B

Notes to Financial Statements

AR SRR M

31 December 2013
20134 12 A31H

16. ¥ - BER®RE

REE
Construction Buildings and Motor Office

in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
TEIE BFREEN RE  BAERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL T THL
5,202 678,016 4,004 1,564 688,786
117,606 861 297 266 119,030
(1,463) 1,463 - - -
- (18) (109) (250) 877)

1,413 5,540 28 10 6,991
122,758 685,862 4,220 1,590 814,430
135,456 1,408 1,123 308 138,295
(178,607) 178,607 - - -
- - (692) (254) (946)

3,008 23,109 109 40 26,266
82,615 888,986 4,760 1,684 978,045

- 139,379 1,884 976 142,239

- 34,386 723 208 35,317
- (1) (104) (198) (313)

- 1,535 20 9 1,564

- 175,289 2,523 995 178,807

- 39,605 678 201 40,484
- - (651) (187) (838)

- 5,789 66 27 5,882

- 220,683 2,616 1,036 224,335

82,615 668,303 2,144 648 753,710
122,758 510,573 1,697 59 635,623
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BRI
31 December 2013
2013412 A 31 H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16.

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s buildings
and structures with a net carrying amount of HK$219,516,000
were pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 26).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s buildings and structures
were free of any pledge and security.

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17.
Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BREREE
Amortised during the year — note 9 FAEE— 9
Exchange realignment b b R B
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A 31 BMEEEE
Current portion included in prepayments, st ATERN X » 24 R E b

deposits and other receivables FEWRIERY R EB 7
Non-current portion SERENEL S

All the Group’s leasehold lands were held under long term
leases and were situated in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s leasehold
lands with a net carrying amount of HK$13,056,000 were
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 26).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s leasehold lands were
free of any pledge and security.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A

¥ mER®ME(E)

2013412 A 31 B » AEBEREF
B/4219,516,000/8 L& TEF K&
BEYEERTRT (EARNAEE
R RITREE R FER (Fi5E26) °

MN20124 12 A31 B » REBEWES
N R A TR H IR A ER -

FfLiA e

Group

rEH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET THET
43,387 44,014
(998) 972)
1,269 345
43,658 43,387
(1,078) (1,047)
42,580 42,340

ANEEZ2IPHEE T IR R AL
B RARPE AL -

R20183F 12 A31 B » ALBERMEF
{8/ 13,056,000 8 TcHYA THHE i
EERTIRT - (EARAEERHR
TRV E MR (FIEE26) ©

MR2012F 12 A31H » AEBENHEE
T HINR B TR IR IR AR o
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18. GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at the

beginning and end of the year N AREFE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 9.5% (2012: 10.1%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an inflation rate of 5% (2012: 5%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the handling of
liquid chemicals. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price are the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.

FHRFRARA

AR SRR M

31 December 2013
20134 12 A31H

18. W&

Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THT
1,210 1,210
BERE RS

FREBAHEE LB RREL
ERMEHEETREENREEES
iz - A e BERUBSRETRE
AMEE 2 ERERNE - MRERE
&8I o % = AR B FE A 2 T Bt
BHEEmE - M RERRER 2
IR 59.5%(20124F : 10.1%) » M
HMARAFHEAMNRESTERIFERS%
(20124 : 5%) Z BAREHER] o

AERSEABARE(CRmIBEAR
FREENEREERESIARE -
ATHAEREBAFERESRER
AAETEERENR CSRAEER

in .
Ea

HHE-ERZITREREHA - X
RREBARSENEM TR

B o
ERF—FREES REEEHER

ARWABRHEESTREFEES
B TERIERIEEN -
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

19.

RETRAD - AR
& W Bt /B8 2 R 50R

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the

directors, these advances are considered as quasi-equity

loans to the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

=1

Ocean Ahead Limited

Edford Investments Limited
RERERR AT

Dragon Bussan

International Limited
EAYMERR AR

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFH&EEZRAR A 5

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
R
BRI ES S

BVI/Hong Kong
REARAREE
S BE

BVI/Hong Kong
REARAREE
/B

Hong Kong
BB

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary share/
registered
capital

81T
EERE
HEfMEREE

US$100
10037

US$1
17T

Ordinary
US$600,000
Non-voting
deferred
US$900,000
(note a)
TRl
600,000 37T
BRERERLE
% 900,000 T
(Kizxa)

REBATRRE
Company
ARQH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
1 1
258,105 339,250
258,106 339,251

RIBARIMBEREER 288
BEEERY BERR AFBK
RIERMTB A RIREVERBER -

FEMBRARFFEET :
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal
RN B FEA IR RE activities
Botk FREEK
Direct Indirect
B iE2
100 — Investment holding
FEPEIR
- 100 Dormant
TEE
= 100 Investment holding

and provision of
marketing services
REER M
RETS

R IR



19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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19. RBAFMERE (EF)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
Name ML
=B SR R SR it B
Dragon Crown Hong Kong
Petrochemicals B
Terminal (Holdings)
Limited
BEAACREE(RE)
AR A
Dragon Source Industrial Hong Kong
Limited B
R ITHR AT
Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid PRC/
Chemical Terminal Company  Mainland China
Limited (“NJDC”) (note b) B AR
MREARB THERSE
BRAB([FEREM])
(FizEb)
Ocean Access Investments Hong Kong

Limited BB
TERBIE AR AR

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary share/
registered
capital

[=F:&h)
BERE

S EAREE

Ordinary
US$26,600,000
Non-voting
deferred
US$500,000
(note a)

=g iilile
26,600,000 % T
B ZERERE
% 500,000 7T
(MizEa)

Ordinary
HK$26,000,000
Non-voting
deferred
HK$2,000,000
(note a)

=g iilile
26,000,000 7T
B ZERERIE

fi% 2,000,000 %8 75
(MizEa)

US$52,254,820
52,254,820 % T

HK$1
1787T

FEMBRARFEAOT :
()
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal
AN FIRE(L IR AE activities
Ao TEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE SiE
= 100 Investment holding
and provision of
finance and
management
services
REER &
RAEM B
E1E RS

= 100 Investment holding
and provision of
accounting
services
REERR R Rt
SRS

- 88.61 Terminal storage
and handling of
liquid chemicals
REBLEmIBER

77 K 72

- 100 Investment holding
and provision of
administrative and
technical services
BB K ARt
T IR B R i AR 75
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note:

(a)

The non-voting deferred shares do not entitle the holders
thereof to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting of the respective companies. The holders
of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to any
dividends. On a winding-up, the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares are entitled, out of the surplus assets of the
respective companies, to a return of the capital paid up on
the non-voting deferred shares held by them to one half of
the balance after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000
has been distributed in such winding-up in respect of the
ordinary shares of the respective companies.

The dividend distribution of this subsidiary is subject to the
approval of the lender under a bank facility arrangement.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

NJDC

Percentage of equity interest held

by non-controlling interests in NJDC RREB DL
Profit for the year allocated to FRHE T IEER
non-controlling interests il

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests of NJDC ) 4!

Accumulated balances of non-controling ~ FE#ZEAR#E2E A 4
interests at the reporting dates 2 BREER

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A

19. REAFNRE (EZ)

(@) ERFERCKROTERTEEE
ﬁA%ﬂWH%%K B
BEARMEMRRAGHNE LR
R BRERETEKROFH AEE
WEREATAR B o POBRRES - EIRR
BIEERNIHAA  BREEHEA
RIABREET - BRENSIAE

XT%LLh@@EZ%K 53

yz%/ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁa B A Y
Ik #E%E100,000 OO0,000,000?’%fETé
HEN D2 — °

b ZMBRRZREDEBERRT
MELH RSN ERAZ I

%%%H FERBZ AATMBA

EHRFEREELETZEIBENX
$E.K$ DEEFE BEERE
Bt B A RSB RE &
FHBN LK °

ATEHINERAEEHBRAREAE

SRR S FTHT R R EE N

P

TR BEAIEER

H &

RIFFER R 2 515 -
FAREEF
2013 2012
11.39% 11.39%
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR TAT
14,073 14,840
20,175 16,225
68,899 58,221




19.

20.

Notes to

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19.

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

Revenue

Other revenue

Total expenses

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows used in

investing activities
Net cash flows from/(used in)

financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

RSB LFMRE (&)

TR LI 2 F B AR
= - FRE S BRI A ARY
o

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
A 270,020 257,770
H A 7,952 19,403
BH (153,212) (146,885)
F Nz A 124,760 130,288
FARAZHER AL 141,453 136,113
MENEE 126,920 70,726
ERBNEE 811,557 681,302
mENEE 187,861 236,187
EREEE 140,877 =
LB EB TSI & ME F 58 162,461 177,237
B IEEIFTH
HEMEFHR (142,446) (94,843)
BVEEEFTS,(FTA)BH e
M= 3R 31,226 (83,392)
Re RIS SEYIEIN,
ORid) #58 51,241 (998)
20. WEEATNKRSE
Group
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
B EEFE 20,424 19,423
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. MHELATNHRE (Z)
Particulars of the Group’s principal associate are as follows: AEEZ ESHERNRINFFBOT ¢
Percentage of
Particulars Place of equity interest
of issued registration attributable to
shares held and business the Group Principal
Name BEO®T EE3111954 AREEEL activities
=L IRAR S S it B REB DL FEEK
Tianjin Tianlong Liquid Registered PRC/ 65  Terminal storage
Chemicals Storage and capital of Mainland and handling of
Transportation Co., Ltd.* US$1,950,000 China liquid chemicals
(REREREIHE dMER  REREA REELER
BRAR) 1,950,000 % 7T PSR f#TE M B IR
# Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has i IRIRAZERMA - AEBHZ ?-i
significant influence but not unilateral control over this REEATE  BEE i
entity.

The interests in associates are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the associate of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associate would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:

Share of associates’ profit/(loss) FE(EHEE R A FR
for the year wF ()

Share of associates’ other FE{GEE = A A
comprehensive income EfhZ2EEA

Share of the associates’ total FE(EHE =R A

comprehensive income/(loss) 2EEA(E8B) B3
Aggregate carrying value of the Group’s AREE R E A A
investments in associates & 2 BEREE

114 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFH&EEZRAR A 5

REE QR ZREEAARRBER
EO

EERE ERBMZARBMEBEA
REEUARFEEEEETESERK
REBRPHEEFE EFRE
AN BARBERREZE
FHBRITE °

TESAAREERL T EE 2B

Rl EHIEER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
409 (1,391)
592 149
1,001 (1,242)
20,424 19,423




21.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Share of net assets

EIEEEFE

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

Name

£

Ningbo Ningxiang
Liquid Chemicals
Terminal Co., Ltd.*
(BRETRILHE
HEERAT)

Ningbo Xinxiang
Liquid Chemical
Store Co., Ltd.*
(R AREE
TERFBEERAR)

The interests in the joint ventures are indirectly held by the

Company.

*

Particulars
of issued
shares held
BEERT
RADFEE

RMB?7,350,000
7,350,000 A R ¥

RMB4,200,000
4,200,000 A R¥&

Place of
registration
and business

MR R

PRC/
Mainland PRC
R,

B AR

PRC/
Mainland PRC
R,

B AR

Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint
control of these entities with other joint venture partners.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

21. REELRHRE

2013
HK$’000
TERT

27,729

Group
ArEE
2012
HK$’000
FAT

26,878

AEEETRELOENFBNT

Percentage of

BO
Ownership Voting Profit
interest power* sharing
BEERER T EEER
60 60 60
60 60 60
ARREEFERE

Principal
activities

TEEK

Terminal storage
and handling of
liquid chemicals
REBLEmTEER

EFREE

Terminal storage
and handling of
liquid chemicals
BRI EmTEER

EFREE

ABDEHRE -

* RIBEBEIZAA - RNEEEHAM
SELEBHARZEHZEER -
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21.

22.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not
individually material:

Share of the joint ventures’ profit FEhE B
for the year F R
Share of the joint ventures’ BhEERE
other comprehensive income Efth =AU A
Share of the joint ventures’ total BB
comprehensive income ZHEWNA L
Aggregate carrying amount of REBERGERE
the Group’s investments B BRIREE

in the joint ventures

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally 30
days, extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate to
their fair values.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A

21. HEBELENRE(E)

TESGAAEEERLTIETE AL

EZAHPEER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
6,325 5,555
676 201
7,001 5,756
27,729 26,878

22, FBUIRR

BRITEP —RABFELNI  AEH
MEPAZZEERY - ERH—R
BI0K  EBEFHEGHIR AT
REG0K - AREBRIEHERFE
W FRTK - mAREIEE S EMERS
HIFE R - REURARSNE B B 5UR - B
RRMEREERE AR ERS
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MR
22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22, FEWAESR (&)
An aged analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the REEHR - IRIBZEZ B MR
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: JEWBRRRBREC AATAA T -
Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current to 30 days BIEAZ= 30 % 31,944 31,115
31 to 60 days 31 260X 10,230 8,999
61 to 90 days 612 90K 3,458 -
Over 90 days 90 KR E 1 -
45,633 40,114
An aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not AR VER B A FE YR SR 0 BR e 0 AT 28
considered to be impaired is as follows: 15
Group
rEHE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired BB HATRARRE 42,174 40,114
Within 90 days past due BEI90 AIAN 3,458 -
Over 90 days past due #HIQ0 KA E 1 -
45,633 40,114
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to BE A 2 BR UM AR BB A FE W 5108 T ER A
customers for which there was no recent history of default. HANY i R AR R A o
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22,

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of the balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

22, EWIER (Z)

EEHERRENEERREB LT
FRAEBEHEA R IFOEALE)
1HE - ERNBEER - AARESR
D BAR AP AR B E - BB AR
REERTERE B -

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. TR - BeRHEMEWKRRIE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEH AATF
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET T F#ET FET
Prepayments TR 3R 12,462 3,471 188 378
Dividend receivable B E - - 260,193 208,193
Deposits and other receivables 1% 5 E b & U 238 1,196 1,340 488 203
13,658 4,811 260,869 208,774
Portion classified as DERERBEE
current assets HIEB (3,040) (4,408) (260,869) (208,774)
Portion classified as DI RIEREEE
non-current assets K8 10,618 403 - -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other
receivables approximate to their fair values.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A

B EEBEAREIBIRRE - Ll i
S EEN SR EER ST R
NS MEWFRER - %FE
T REMBEFANKREERE QA
EAEE -

JL



24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Notes to Financial Statements
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24, BERAELEED

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET T FBT FAT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITAERR 101,007 64,101 4,903 32,513
Time deposits with original RERHA
maturity of less than TE@=EA
three months Z T BAfE R 181,027 201,614 108,077 125,601

Time deposits with original [REZIE AR

- 38421 -

maturity of more than =& A & EHA
three months T3

Cash and cash equivalents AR A
on the statement of HeRBEEEFEY

financial position

320,455

265,715 146,401 158,114

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$295,882,000 (2012: HK$235,553,000). The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and six months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

RABREHR AFERAARE
TAR®E DHENR S LRITHERRE
295,882,000 7T (2012 4F : 235,553,000
BIL) - BE MRS FEYMEEER
HORERE -

ARBIEERLEKEMER - R
i AR B A O HNE B R A5 1))
F(HEIE - EERNEERRE) &
SEEAEEBERBEETINERBR
RIT - BARBLBAEBER -

FRIITHREIRE RRITERH X
HF BB R IREUAE - RHIE B
HIRYE—R2INEA A AEE RS
FRME - A AR HE BER
NEREFHE - RITEBRERIH
BENTR - FERIAIRTT °
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables H At FETERIE
Accruals FEETE A
Amounts due to subsidiaries A RNENGIE O
Receipt in advance TEUR IR

25. RtiEMRRRENRA

Group Company
rEE N

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THET FAT THET FAT
18,762 16,784 - -
37,784 42,087 1,244 1,324
- - 17,005 11,585
1,222 - - -
57,768 58,871 18,249 12,909

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2013, included in other payables of the
Group was a payable of HK$1,280,700 (2012: HK$1,243,900)
due to the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Management
Committee which is the parent company of Nanjing Chemical
Industry Park Company Limited, a non-controlling interest
of the Group, representing the remaining outstanding
balance due to acquiring a prepaid land lease. Upon certain
conditions being fulfiled by the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Management Committee, such as land levelling, the amount
will be settled.

As at 31 December 2013, included in other payables of the
Group was a dividend payable of HK$9,382,000 (2012:
HK$13,674,000) due to Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Company Limited, a non-controlling interest of the Group. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other than the balances mentioned above, other payables
are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one
month. The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
approximate to their fair values.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFH&EEZRAR A 5

Zl

R &SRR EEIR - TF S

o

\|

2 B
wmE

NG
Sk

X
R

Tk
il

MR2013F12 31 H » AEFHME
NREABEENE R EETEER
ZEB(RASEBFERARERL
BTXRARAFNEAR) KRB
1,280,700/ 70 (20124F : 1,243,900/
TT) - HEREESEN LB Em
FERTHY AR BB FRIEEATE - FFER(LE
ITXRERZERENE TGRHE(A
TR ) 1% - ZFIERTEE o

2013412 A31H » REBEHME
NREBEARERNAEEEERA
AERLETEREAGRAFMNRE
9,382,000 7T (2012 4F : 13,674,000
BIT) o ZNEREEIR - B RIE

SR8 -

B EX Pl A& ERSN - E ML RIA RS
Pet REFHERHR—@EA - Efts
ENFENEERNEREREER
AERE °
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BT ML
26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 26. FHRMITEHR
Group
REE
Effective
interest 2013 2012
rate (%) Maturity HK$’°000 HK$’000
EERFIZE (%) Z|H3H FET THT
Current
TRENI 5
Secured Hong Kong Interbank 2014 14,167 -
Offer Rate (“HIBOR"), 20144
plus 2%
BHEA BBRITRIZES BFIE
([BBRZERITRE
FIZE ) +2%
Secured People’s Bank of China (2012: 2013) - 12,031
AR base rate, discounted (20124F : 20134F)
by 5%
A RIRTTEERE -
P& 5%
14,167 12,031
Non-current
ERETB D
Secured HIBOR, plus 2% 2015 t0 2017 70,833 -
BHEA EBBRTRERENE 2% 2015FEF 2017 F
Unsecured 4% per annum 2015 64,035 -
AR FHEA4% 20154
134,868 -
149,035 12,031
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: SRITE AN AT BRfEEE ¢
Within one year 1ER 14,167 12,031
In the second year FE2F 92,368 =
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FIESF(BEEEMSE) 42,500 -
149,035 12,031
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The Group’s bank loans as at 31 December 2013 were
secured by:

(i) corporate guarantees granted by the Company;

(i) fixed charges over certain buildings and structures
with a net carrying amount of HK$219,516,000 as at
31 December 2013 (note 16); and

(i) fixed charges over certain leasehold lands with a
net carrying amount of HK$13,056,000 as at 31
December 2013 (note 17).

(o)  The Group’s bank loans as at 31 December 2012 were
secured by corporate guarantees granted by the Company.

(c) The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate to their fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

(d)  Except for an unsecured borrowing of HK$64,035,000

which is denominated in Renminbi, all borrowings are in
Hong Kong dollars.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A

26.

AHRBITER(E)

B

AREBP20134F12 A 31 HHERTT
B TIAATIE B B -

0] ARERERDEER

(i)  F20135F12A31H - ©ERME
SFE A219,516,000/8 LRI
FrEFREEYAEEEA
(Mf3E16) + &

(i)  FA2013%FE12 A31H - HWEEME
SE(E513,056,0008 TTHIE
TS 1 i 9 [ 5 3 (P 5
17) o

REEN20124512 A31 HHIRTTE
FRIAZR R AR R ZE R EEA -

RBEER - RITERARE(E N
HARERE -

BRIUARBAENEEREES
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. ERIEERIA
The movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the RAFERLEFRBEAEBENEEZEEF
year are as follows: B RNRR ¢
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRESE
Group REE
Withholding
taxes
AN
HK$’000
THT
At 1 January 2012 R201241 A1H 5,663
Deferred tax charged to the statement B FNiam KRR ARERIE
of profit or loss during the year 6,030
Withholding tax paid on repatriation of HMBAFR] - EEDENBE QR
earnings from subsidiaries, b 1 28 71 f 52 - A9 TR AR
joint ventures and associates (5,697)
Exchange realignment ME 5 SR B 65
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 72012412 A 31 H X% 201341 A1 H 6,061
Deferred tax charged to the statement B FANEmR R AELETIA
of profit or loss during the year 6,019
Withholding tax paid on repatriation of B AR] - AECEREENF]
earnings from subsidiaries, B HH 28 7| 1 Se A~ A TR A0
joint ventures and associates (6,374)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B 193
At 31 December 2013 M20134F 12 A31 H 5,899
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

27. RIERIF(Z)

Deferred tax assets

Group

EERBREE
REE
Timing difference on

revenue recognition
of taxable profit

PERRT =T
WA TERHY
REEE
HK$’000
FH&T
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A1 H -
Deferred tax credited to the statement RNEEFFABRTOELETRIE
of profit or loss during the year 1,435
Exchange realignment HE 5 8 B 17
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 722012412 A31 H & 201341 A1 H 1,452
Deferred tax charged to the statement FSTAREEEEEZARELERIE
of profit or loss during the year (1,473)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 B 21

At 31 December 2013

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5% to 10%
withholding tax rate is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by the subsidiary, associates and joint ventures
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$22,797,000 (2012: HK$23,886,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and in the opinion of the directors, it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFH&EEZRAR A 5

MR20134 12 A 31 H

RIEP B ZEMETE - MABA
R INE R ERIRIMNGE BT IR
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#FEBE2008F 1 A1 BEAER @ Wi#E
2007 F12 A31 B2 BEANE
FI o fis o B ER SR HNG B FTIE R)AME
EEE] A ERHE - A ERE
TEMH R - MAKEmME - B
HEE5% - At - AEBARRE
B A S T B A R - B A R K
BENEFF20084F1 A1 HEEFTE
B RREL A B AN TEFNFR ©

AEBBEERBE B Z2HIEBEEIE
22,797,000 T (20124 : 23,886,000
BIT)  AIERIANIREELEEEZ
NER B ERE A o AREAR
EFHTBEEENKBARE BB B
- B ERZ SR ERIELETIE
BE BESRETARAIEZELNE
R e A AR SE AR TE B 18 o
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29.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: EIE
4,000,000,000 (2012: 4,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
1,109,662,000 (2012: 1,109,662,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2012, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
There were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

4,000,000,000 f%
(2012 4F : 4,000,000,000 fi% )
BIREE0.10/8 T2 Ll

1,109,662,000 A%
(2012 4F : 1,109,662,000 %)
FREEO10B T TRk

28.

29.

B RS SRR M

B
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$000
TR TAT
400,000 400,000
110,966 110,966

MR st @

AREER 201145 A 23 B ERANEE AR
srEl ([l ]) - S ERBEE
B2EE (BEAR R SKEAERKB
NAIZIEE - TTHRABS=ABE
EE(PRIIFRTES KB ILIENTT
BF) BEME - #WE - #HER T
PRMRIE)  RIEHEARNEE KL
RIEHZER @ (RIERNEE RN RIE
Bl ®H2ES - REIZ2013F &
201212 A1 HIEFEAN * &NAF]
MERIRERE SR - 1Tk
55 BE AR A o 7A2013F 12 5318 -
REARRE T & T R M1 T 2 B AR
(20124 : &) »
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30. RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

0

(i)

(i)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents the difference
between the consideration and the book value of
the share of the net assets acquired in respect of
the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior year’s losses), if
any, to the reserve funds until the balance of the
funds reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in
the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus
fund may be used to offset against accumulated
losses of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the
transfer is subject to the approval of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
in the PRC which are dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 3.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFH&EEZRAR A 5
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HT EERBRAEEA
PR R 8K BB B X A1 Y
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30. RESERVES (continued) 30. fEf(#Z)
(b) Company (b) ZA2AF
Proposed
final
Share Retained dividends
premium profits =3 Total
BEE REEM  KERE @5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT T TAET TAT

At 1 January 2012 R2012%1 A1H 431,509 58,170 55,483 545,162
Total comprehensive FAZERALRE

income for the year - 92,585 - 92,585
Final 2011 dividends paid B4 2011 F RS - - (55,483) (55,483)
Proposed final 2012 EH 2012 FARHE B

dividends - (61,031) 61,031 -
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31 H

and 1 January 2013 % 201341 A81H 431,509* 89,724* 61,031 582,264
Total comprehensive FRZHERALTE

income for the year - 37,121 - 37,121
Interim 2013 dividends 2013 FRHIAR 8 - (22,193) - (22,193)
Final 2012 dividends paid ~ B4F2012 FREE - - (61,031) (61,031)
Proposed final 2013 % 20134

dividends REAAR B - (42,167) 42,167 -
At 31 December 2013 R 201835 12 A31 H 431,509* 62,485* 42,167 536,161

*

These reserve accounts comprises the reserves of
HK$493,994,000 (2012: HK$521,233,000) in the
statement of financial position.

* ZEREREREIBRLER
A ) % 493,994,000 7T
(2012 4 : 521,233,000 8
TT) e
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@ As at 31 December 2013, the Group recorded other
payables and accruals in relation to additions of
property, plant and equipment of HK$21,260,000 (2012:
HK$23,236,000). The additions have had no cash
flow impact on the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2013, HK$403,000
(2012: nil) in relation to purchase of property, plant
and equipment was transferred from prepayments to
property, plant and equipment.

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has provided
a guarantee, amounting to approximately HK$181,000,000
(2012: HK$27,675,000), to banks in connection with loans
granted to subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2013, the loan
balance of subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to banks
by the Company amounted to approximately HK$85,000,000
(2012: HK$12,031,000).

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited gEfS&EEZERGRA A

31.

32.

FeRKRERME

TEHFRERS

@ M2013F12A318 ' A& E
BEEBEARANYE  BE K
% 5 B9 E fth FE S R IE K FE ET
£ FH 21,260,000 78 7T (2012 £F -
28,236,000 77T ) © 2N INE A
& B R & £20134F K 20124
12 A31 B IEFEAWTERE R

=8/

= I
BEre °

() HZ=2013F12A31BILLFE -
EHEBEMHE BERRED
FXIHA03,00078 7T (20124F : £&)
TEBEEME  BEREHEZ
FEfTHR ©

BRAR

RABERR  AEE A EEMER
HARRIE

RAREER - NARGRETFHEA
AIZERMBITRE—HSBELY
181,000,000 JT 2 #& 1R (20124 :
27,675,000 7T) ° 7, 20134 12 A 31
B BEARARMRITELHOER -
BB A B B SR ER BE £ 49 85,000,000 78
7 (2012 4F : 12,031,000 7T) °
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. EEHARH

(a)

(b)

As lessor (a)

The Group leases certain portion of its office building
under an operating lease arrangement, with the lease
negotiated for a term of five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows:

Within one year 1 FA
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E2ZEE5F R (BIEEREME)

As lessees (b)

The Group leases certain portion of its office premises
and pipe racks under operating lease arrangements.
The leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 15
years.

ERHAA

AEERBEEHELHHEE
HERFEME T ZHO
WERSFH -

\

)

RIS R - NEEH AR
HEEHENRRKEHES 2
BAN T HIFHRESYER :

Group
rEH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
510 4883
1,191 1,611
1,701 2,094
ERABEA
AEERBLCEHELRHERAE

i

HETHMAMERER - %F
HAOFHHBERIEIEF o
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 33. BEHERBEE)
(b) As lessees (continued) (b) EBEBAGE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total REREHIR - AREE 5 Al
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable FHIKEHE R R R KEHE S 42
operating leases falling due as follows: CEYE) SN Jiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂ}\iﬁ
Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Within one year 1FER 14,973 12,939
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2 & 5F (BHEEHEMRFE) 55,413 50,605
After five years 5% LA E 43,248 50,098
113,634 113,642
The Company had not entered into any operating lease R2013%F 12 A31 H » AARIL
arrangements as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil). R 2 E L HE (2012
F:F)
34. COMMITMENTS 34. &I
In addition to the operating lease arrangements detailed in Br BBt EE 33 FrRFal i R E L HE 2
note 33 above, the Group had the following capital expenditure N REREHEIR - AEEEF TFER
commitments at the end of the reporting period: A
Group
rEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Contracted, but not provided for: EHESRREES =
Buildings and structures BFREEY) 53,757 19,543
Authorised, but not contracted for: B - BRETA
Buildings and structures BFREEY) 153,850 352,687
The Company did not have any commitments as at 31 MR2013%F 12 A31 H » AR RN EE
December 2013 (2012: Nil). faAEdE (20124 : &) o
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. MBEALEES
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@) BREFIE TR &b 5 BTt il /9
these financial statements, the Group had the following RHIN s REBRFRNL HERE
transactions with related parties during the year: EEATHETUTRS ¢
Group
rEH
2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FET FA&T
Terminal storage income: HEERTFWA
Dragon Crown Investments A ITBR AR AR
Limited (“DC Investments”) ([BEAETRERR 1) (i) 1,489 3,541
Terminal service expenses: ISSE AR 2 i -
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park mRtETEE AR (ii) 1,940 1,844
Public Services Company Ltd. EEFREEAF
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park mAREETER (ii) 1,090 584
Management Committee EBRLZE®
Rental and auxiliary expenses: HERKBS T
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park AR LB TXE (iii 12,310 9,578
Company Limited BRAFA
(“Nanjing CIPC”) ([FmCIPC))
DC Investments BEA L T BURR (iv) 1,494 1,494
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

Terminal storage income was charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group
and this related company in which one director of the
Company is the ultimate controlling shareholder of
this related company.

Terminal service expenses were charged in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between
the Group and the related companies which were the
group companies of a non-controlling shareholder of
NJDC.

Rental and auxiliary expenses were charged in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder of NJDC
for the use of pipe racks.

Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the
related company for the use of an office premise.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii),
(iiy and (iv) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Commitments with related parties

U

(i)

(i)

A subsidiary of the Group, as the lessor, entered
into a three-year terminal storage agreement
ending on 31 December 2015 with DC Investments.
On 27 October 2013, the above terminal storage
agreement was terminated.

A subsidiary of the Group, as the lessee, entered
into a three-year office lease agreement ending
on 31 December 2015 with DC Investments. As
at 31 December 2013, the total operating lease
commitments falling due within one year and
in the second to fifth years were approximately
HK$1,494,000 (2012: HK$1,494,000) and
HK$1,494,000 (2012:HK$2,988,000), respectively.

A subsidiary of the Group entered into certain
agreements with Nanjing CIPC for use of pipe
racks and auxiliary services ending on 14 March
2022 and on 6 January 2023, respectively.
As at 31 December 2013, the total operating
lease commitments in relation to pipe racks and
auxiliary services falling due within one year,
in the second to fifth years, and beyond the
fifth year were approximately HK$13,480,000
(2012: HK$11,445,000), HK$53,919,000 (2012:
HK$47,617,000) and HK$43,248,000 (2012:
HK$50,097,000), respectively.

B RS AR M

35. RMALER(Z)

(b) EIBAEE TS 1 2 A&iE

(i)

AEEZ KB ARIE
A A R TR
T E Z= 20154 12 A 31
HitAH=F 2 BBEER
3% o 2013410 A 27
B LilfEEEERED
ik o

AEEZ —HHEARIE
AEMEAREMN TR
51 M B 220154 12 A 31
HiEAB=F7HA=MH
Epas o 72013412 A31
H —FARF_ZFH
FRBKERERED R
#941,494,0005 7T (2012
F :1,494,000%8 T ) &
1,494,0007 JT (20124 :
2,988,000/87T) °

AEE Tz —HHEARE
MR CIPCHL D BIfE FAE 42
KM B R i R] S E 2022
F3A14BK2023%F1 A
6EItzETHE R -
MR2013%F 12 A31H » —
FRN -F_FEFAEK
FF AR 7 4 T E
Y& B 497 13,480,000 7
7T (2012 4F : 11,445,000
7 78 ) ~ 53,919,000 JT
(20124 : 47,617,00078
JL ) K& 43,248,0007 T
(2012 4F : 50,097,000 5
7T) °
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. FBABEALRH (E)
(c) Details of the outstanding balances with related parties () BAE@EEATIHRBELERF
are included in note 25 to the financial statements. BN S wFKMIFE 25 ©
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d ETEBHNETEESIEASIEN
the Group
Group
AEE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F&TT
Short term employee benefits EHIEEfEF 10,255 9,303
Post-employment benefits RIREEA 60 57
Total compensation paid BENEEER
to key management personnel A BB B4R %8 10,315 9,360
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. RENBSMEMIR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REREER - SHEeMmTANKRE
instruments as at the end of the respective reporting period are BEHFHIIAT :
as follows:
Financial assets - loans and receivables EREE-BRRERNRE
Group
AEH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FH&TT
Accounts receivable e BEFR 45,633 40,114
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AFBH R« #2& M EMEIR
deposits and other receivables (note 23) AR A E (MiFE23) 1,196 1,340
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 320,455 265,715
367,284 307,169
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P % B R
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. BENESMEMIRA(E)
(continued)
Financial assets - loans and receivables (continued) SHMEE -ERXREWFIE )
Company
PN
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
Financial assets included in prepayments,  sFAFERTER « #2d K HAtb fEUL
deposits and other receivables (note 23) HIER LB EE (FIFE23) 260,681 208,396
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 146,401 158,114
407,082 366,510

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans

Other payables and accruals

TREE - RBHERARTR

Group

REH
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T
HE I sa ke &R 57,768 58,871
STRIRITER 149,035 12,031
206,803 70,902

Company

PN
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
Hib et sIE ke E R 18,249 12,909
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank loans. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable, financial assets included
in deposits and other receivables, and other payables and
accruals, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The majority of the bank borrowings bear
interest at rates with reference to the PBOC base rate and
HIBOR. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities
and borrowings regularly. The Group has not used any interest
rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A
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The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
advanced payments are generally required for new customers.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Since the Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is normally no requirement for
collateral.

B RS AR M

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. MERBEERREREEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) Fl|Z & (42)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRETEEMAZTEBFRT » F
reasonably possible change in the PBOC base rate and B ARRITEERN R R EBRITRAIZE
HIBOR, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s B R A IR E AR E B AR RS
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate bank FMOEEBHZERITEENTE) M
borrowings). RRfE o
Change in
Change in profit
basis points before tax
HyEE RR%E AT
i FI B B
HK$’000
AT
31 December 2013 2013412 A 31 H
HIBOR BARITRIZEFREE 50 220
31 December 2012 2012912 A31 H
PBOC base rate R A RERTTEAER = 50 60
Credit risk 1EE

AEEETZAERAREERFNSE
= RERS - ARBBRAENE
P—RRANTAMK 1o - UK
RS X BIFERR - AEENE
RRBRILTEX - HRAKEEER
ERAREERFNFE =ZTRHER
% it — R BAFE R -
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. As at 31 December 2013, there was a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 66.7% (2012:
61.7%) of the Group’s accounts receivable was due from one
debtor. The Company is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of guarantee, further details of which are disclosed
in note 32 to the financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 22 and 23, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and
financial assets (for example, accounts receivable) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. MERBEEAERBE (Z)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B E DA ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEERSREHRERE LA
the end of the respective reporting period, based on the NEErEENABERAT

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2013
3to
Less than 12 months 1to5
Ondemand 3 months 3{EAZE years Total
RER DLRIEA 1218 A 1E54F st

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FExT FERT FET FHERT

Interest-bearing T ERITE R
bank loans - 1,103 17,475 137,448 156,026
Other payables E A HRIA R
and accruals fEETE 10,662 47,106 - - 57,768
10,662 48,209 17,475 137,448 213,794
2012
3to
Lessthan 12 months 1t05
Ondemand 3 months 3fEAZE years Total
®RER LRIEAR 12{8 8 1Z=5%F #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T FETT T
Interest-bearing FTEIRITER
bank loans - 12,068 - - 12,068
Other payables E e FIE K
and accruals FEsTE R 14,918 43,953 - - 58,871
14,918 56,021 - - 70,939
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Notes to Financial Statements
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as

at the end of the respective reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Other payables and accruals
Guarantee given to banks
in connection with loans
granted to subsidiaries
utilised at the end of
the reporting period

Other payables and accruals
Guarantee given to banks
in connection with loans
granted to subsidiaries
utilised at the end of
the reporting period

HA R 5 SRR e BT B
FAIAIPT I A IR AR S
HIRERHIE R

M A RITYEH YRR

HLA R A5 RR e e T B AR
FLIAIPT I A IR AR S
HIRE MM ER

M A RITYEH YRR

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited & EZERGRA A

37.

HMERBREEARRIEE (Z)
REE LA ()
ARAREWMEEROERE DR
BRI EBENE BRI T
2013
Less than
Ondemand 3 months Total
EER LPRIEA et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET F#ET THET
17,005 1,244 18,249
85,000 - 85,000
102,005 1,244 103,249
2012
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
REXR PRIEA 5T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT FAIT AT
11,585 1,324 12,909
12,031 - 12,031
23,616 1,324 24,940




37.

38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors the capital ratio on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio, which is calculated as the net debt
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company plus
net debt. Net debt includes other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank loans, less cash and cash equivalents.
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at the end of the
respective reporting period was as follows:

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRTTE R

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
e TR

Net cash

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company
Capital and net debt EARRBEFE
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B E KRS N 3R

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2014.

H A FEAS 50R S EFT &

o R MREEHEY

RRBGHE AR

B RS AR M

37. MERRERERRBE (&)

BEXEE

AEBEEAEENTEARA/RER
SEBRNFERLEER YRR
REEARLE  KMXBEETER
KEAREMRTTIREE -

REREE R H B AR RIFE BN
SR B K AR B A ) R B e R L
GAE - RERIHEABREARE &
SEAHRARRRMNORE - [K
RIREBEANKEITHIM

AEEZ A ERERHEE AR L R
BARLE - gttt XTI & EFER
UARRRHER ARG #E A EFE
ZMEE - AEFRBREMBENR
8 N fEE B LA KRG BRITER - R
RekReEEY RERSHK -
BEEEABREARLRMT

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
57,768 58,871
149,035 12,031
(320,455) (265,715)
(113,652) (194,813)
942,596 900,388
828,944 705,575

N/A N/A

38. #EMBHE

EESC0R2014F3 198 BANRE
TETIBE BTSSR -
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Five Year Financial Summary

FFEHEHME

REVENUE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Total equity

The summary does not form a part of the audited financial

statements.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFH&EEZRAR A 5

WA
BRBE AT 25 A
IR

FREF

AT ARG
ZA/NCTE SN
FEFERR M

BE
FRBEE
MBEE

BEMRE

&f
mBEE
FRBEE

BIRAEHE
BEFE

RS AAE

G

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TERXT THxT THxr THET THEET

270,020 257,770 240,675 233,024 198,547
144,085 139,931 108,557 125,193 107,979
(25,778) (25,991) (5,319) (8,036)  (6,043)

118,307 113,940 103,238 117,157 101,936

104,234 99,100 90,076 96,745 85,304
14,073 14,840 13,162 20,412 16,632

118,307 113,940 103,238 117,157 101,936

At 31 December
MW12A31H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERXT THxT THxr THET THEET

856,271 727,329 641,018 640,918 626,071
372,751 314,685 451,493 104,187 62,673

1,229,022 1,042,014 1,092,511 745,105 688,744

76,760 77,344 180,100 92,861 117,182
140,767 6,061 17,598 168,918 284,075

217,527 83,405 197,698 261,779 401,257

1,011,495 968,609 894,813 483,326 287,487

1,011,495 058,609 894,813 483,326 287,487

S E A N SR BELIBRRA)— D ©



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHONG Man Kit

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Corporate Information
ARIER

PITES
REREE(ZE)
[RE RS (TTEAREL)
HASEE
R=EXE

BIUFRITES
2IHIRELE
SRR L
RRERE

FREAE
BIHREE(EE)
SRR L
RRERE

FHERE
BRIREE(L/E)
SRERERL
RRELE
REREE
RE =Tt

REERE
BIHREE (£/E)
SRR L
RRESRE
REREE
REREE

sEAx
HBEEEE
R=S L

LFIHE
XL

% RED

KRR
K ETAD

Annual Report 2013 FE#RE 143



144

Corporate Information
NCIE-¢

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Strategic Financial Relations Limited

Unit A, 29/F., Admiralty Centre |,

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
No. 101, Hao-Jia-Ba, Xinli Village

County of Yudai

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park

Liuhe District, Nanjing City

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.dragoncrown.com

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited sEf&EEZERERA A

BREEMZEER
MR A AR AR AR
EBERIBE 185
BERL—H2BAE

HFREIEERE
BB

PEEE 198
TRESHAKNE
183K =
hEEEERIDE
PET 8R A
MRmAER
AR LETERER
B

LRI ARZRR 101 57

FMERskiEBFECHE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
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